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ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORD. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

GORDON J. MACDONALD JANE E. YOUNG

ATTORNEY GENERAL DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

February 26, 2019

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

Slate House

Concord, NH 03301

REQUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice (DOJ) to retroactively amend an existing subgrant
with the Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County, Inc., Portsmouth NH (Vendor
#158817-8001, Purchase Order Number 1056927), from the Federal Victim of Crime Act Grant
(VOCA), approved by the Governor and Executive Council on June 21, 2017, item #154, by
increasing the price limitation by $107,8,4J from $225,000 to $332,841 effective March 1, 2019
through June 30, 2020 upon Governor and Executive Council approval. 100% Federal Funds.

Funding is available in State Fiscal Year 2019 and is contingent upon the availability and
continued appropriation of funds in Fiscal Year 2020 as follows, with the ability to adjust
encumbrances through the Budget Office between Fiscal Years if needed and justified: .

02-20-20-201510-5021 Current Subgrant Amended Current Subgrant Amended
Victims of Crime Act Subgrant Increase Subgrant Subgrant Increase Subgrant
072-500575, Grants Federal FY2019 FV2019 FY2019 FY 2020 FY2020 FY2020

$75,000 $31,718 $106,718 $75,000 $76,123 $151,123

Total Subgrant Increase For FY 2019 and FY 2020: $107,841

EXPLANATION

This item request is retroactive because full and correct contract information was not
received by this office from the subgrantee for timely consideration by Governor and Council
prior to March 1,2019.

VOCA was enacted by Congress in 1984 and it established the Crime Victims Fund.
Fines paid by offenders of federal crimes are deposited into this Fund. Money from the Fund is
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then distributed to states for the benefit of victims of crime. In 2000, Congress placed a limit on
the distribution of funds. Recently, the limit on the distribution of funds has been increasing. In
FY 2013 the total limit was $730 million, while in FY 2017 the total limit exceeded $2 billion.
Thus, all states, including New Hampshire, have received substantial increases in VOCA funds.
DOJ is the receiving agency for VOCA funds in New Hampshire.

DOJ subgrants these funds to agencies providing direct services to victims of crime.
VOCA requires the funds be distributed to agencies providing services in the fields of sexual
assault, domestic abuse and crimes against children. For many years, DOJ has directed VOCA
funds to certain core service providers.

This significant increase in VOCA funds presents an important opportunity for New
Hampshire and for the many dedicated organizations and individuals who work with victims of
crime. Following a careful analysis, DOJ has determined that a portion of the increased VOCA
funds should be allocated to existing core service providers. The distribution of the VOCA funds
was based on a formula to ensure fairness, equality and, most importantly, sustainability to the
current subgrantees. DOJ is also engaged in a Victims' Needs Assessment. The balance of the
increase in VOCA funds will be distributed based on the results of this Needs Assessment.

The Child Advocacy Center (CAC) of Rockingham County, Inc. was one such
organization whose grant was increased. The CAC of Rockingham County has been a long
standing and proven subgrantee. The purpose of the CAC is to standardize the investigation of
child abuse and neglect cases and minimize trauma to child victims by limiting the number of
interviews to which a child must be subjected, and to coordinate services for a child using a
multi-disciplinary team approach. The subgranl will be used to enhance current services.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not be
requested to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your consideration
is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully submitted,

Gordor^ MacDonald
5rney General

#2314943



STATE OF NEW HAMPSHIRE

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE AND GAG OF ROGKINGHAM COUNTY

FIRST CONTRACT AMENDMENT

This amendment ("Amendment") is by and between the Department of Justice and the Child
Advocacy Center of Rockingham County, Inc. ("Subrecipient")

WHEREAS, pursuant to an Agreement ("Contract"), approved by the Governor and Council on
June 21, 2017, item #154 the Subrecipient agreed to provide victim services upon the terms and
conditions specified in the contract, and in consideration of payment by the Department of
Justice of certain sums specified therein;

WHEREAS, pursuant to the provisions of paragraph 20; Amendment, the Contract may be
amended, waived or discharged by written instrument executed by the parties thereto;

WHEREAS, the Subrecipient and the Department of Justice have agreed to amend the Contract
in certain aspects;

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing, and the covenants and conditions
contained in the Contract, and set forth herein, the parties hereto do hereby agree as follows:

1. Amendment and Modification of Contract

a. Paragraph 1.8; Grant Limitation: Increase by $107,841 from $225,000 to $332,841.
b. Delete Exhibit B Paragraph 3b. in its entirety and replace therein as follows:

The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $ 106,718 of the total
Grant Limitation from 7/1/18 to 6/30/19, with approved expenditure reports. This
shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

c. Delete Exhibit B Paragraph 3c. in its entirety and replace therein as follows:
The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $151,123 of the total
Grant Limitation from 7/1/19 to 6/30/20, with approved expenditure reports. This
shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

d. Delete Paragraph 1.3; Subrecipient Name in its entirety and replace therein as follows:
Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County, Inc.

2. Effective Date of Amendment

a. This Amendment shall take effect upon approval of the Governor and Executive Council.

3. Continuance of Agreement
a. Except as specifically amended and modified by the terms and conditions of this

Amendment, the Contract and the obligations of the parties hereunder, shall remain in
full force and effect with the terms and conditions set forth herein. IN WITOESS

WHEREOF, the parties set their hand as of the day and year first above written.

Pirst Contracl Agreemcnl Dcpartmcnl of Justice and Rockingham CAC Page 1 of!
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Maureen Sullivan Date"
Executive Director
Child Advocacy Center of
Rockingham County inc. . i 'MIRANDA F-. WEGRfCHT

N
Notary Public or Justice of the Peace Acknowledgement:

otfify Public, N«w, Hp.rrvcwhire,
My Commissioii 8,2020

State of County of
undersigned officer, ' personally appeared the p€Pe

. On IS , 20(7, before the
3

rson identified as the Subrecipant, or
satisfactorily proven to be the .person whose name is associated "with the Subrecipiant and
acknowledge^that s/he executed this document in the capacity indicated.

■  \A<r/LnAn^ \^j^QricJy\^ ^
Signature of Notary Public Justice of the Peace Name and Title of Notary Public or Justice of the Peace

Cpa K ^ ^ \
Kathleen B. Carr . Date
Director of Administration

Approved by the Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution)

2-kl l l^SaIaa^
Attorney , Date

First ContrBCt Agreement Department of Justice and,Rockingham CAC Page 2 of!



state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of Slate of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER
OF ROCKJNGHAM COUNTY, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New
Hampshire on July 12, 1999.! further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been
received and is in good standing as far as this office is concerned.

Business ID: 320619

Certificate Number: 0004368428

Or

y
uu

O
5sS)

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF,

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,

this 7th day of January A.D. 2019.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



Client#: 35630 CHIAD1

ACORD. CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (MMrt>D/YYYY)

02/15/2019

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER. AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder Is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(le8) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder In lieu of such endorsement(8).

PRODUCER

People's United Ins. Agency NH

1555 Lafayette Rd.

2nd Fl.

Portsmouth, NH 03801

contact Laurie Mclntir

603.427-7529

Ai^Fs*!- laurle.mcintlre@peoples.com
INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAICS

INSURER A: Philadelphia Indemnity Insurance Co. 18058

INSURED

Child Advocacy Center of Rocklngham

County Inc.

100 Campus Drive, Suite #11
Portsmouth, NH 03801

INSURER B: Hartford 19682

INSURER C :

INSURER D:

INSURER E:

INSURER F :

INSR
LTR

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE ̂ 0" T"E POLICY PER^^
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER DOCUMENT WITH RESPECT TO ̂ ICH THIS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN. THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
EXCLUSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PA^D CLAIMS.

ADOUSUBRI
INSRTYPE OF INSURANCE WVD POLICY NUMBER

POLICY EPF POUCY
(mwdd/yyyy) IMM/DO/YYYY) UMrrs

COMMERCIAL GENEML LIABIUTY

CLAIMS-MAOE OCCUR

PHPK1875098 10/18/2018 10/18/2019 EACH OCCURRENCE

MED EXP (Any oo» per»on)

PERSONAL & AOV INJURY

GEN\ AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

POLICY i I JECT I I LOC
OTHER;

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMP/OP AGO

AUTOMOBILE LIABIUTY
COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
<Ea accktent)

ANY AUTO

OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

HIRED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (P«r p*rton)

UMBRELLA UAB

EXCESS UAB

DEO

SCHEDULED

AUTOS
NON-OWNED
AUTOS ONLY

BODILY INJURY (Pv acddtnl)

PROPERTY DAMAGE
fPer acddanU

OCCUR

CLAIMS-MAOE

EACH OCCURRENCE

AGGREGATE

RETENTION (

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS-LIABIUTY y/N
ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVEr-^
OFFICERrt^EMBER EXCLUDED? | N I
(Mandatory In NH)
If vM. daaolba urxlar
DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

04WECAB8CGQ 10/18/2018 10/18/2019
PER
.STATUTE

OTH-

£B

E.L EACH ACCIDENT
N(A

E.L. DISEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT

s1.000.000

$100.000

$5.000

$1,000,000

$2.000.000

$2,000,000

$100.000

$100,000

$500.000

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS (VEHICLES (ACORO 101. AddlBonal Ramarka Schadoli. may ba attachad M mor# tpaca is raqulrwJ)
Proof of Insurance

CERTIFICATE HOLDER

New Hampshire Department of
Justice

33 Capitol Street
Concord, NH 03301

1

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

/Pi Arnon roRPORATiON. All rlohts reserved.

ACORD 25 (2016/03) 1 of 1
#S1051802/M1051801

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORD
LLM
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Certificate nfAuthority for

The Child Advocacy Center ofRockinaham County. Inc.

I, Andrew Chace, hereby certify that I am duly elected Board Chair of the Child Advocacy Center of

Rockingham County, Inc. I hereby certify the following is a true copy of an electronic vote taken in

January 15 of 2019 at which a quorum of the Directors voted.

VOTED: That Maureen Sullivan is duly authorized to enter into contracts and agreements

on behalf of the Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County, Inc. with the state of New

Hampshire and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any

documents which may be in his judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of

this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and

effect as the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. I further certify that it is

understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the

person listed above currently occupy the position indicated and that they have full authority to

bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed

individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

DATED: 1^1!'1 ATTEST:
Andrew W. Chace, Board Chair



MAUREEN gTTT I TVAN

imail: MSullivan@communitycampus.org

EXPERIENCED EXECUTIVE

Experienced strategic and operations executive with a focus on identifying market opportunities, finanaal management, and
fund development aaoss the public and private sectors. Excel at team budding, growmg market segments, and being a
visionary for emerging business needs from concept, to product, to customer. Develop mouvated teams that exceed goals m
a positive environment and collaborative partnerships at the local, state, and national level.

AREA OF EXPERTISE

. Entrepreneurial Leadership ■ Fundraising & Grant Writing ■ Team BuiJdi^ & M^agement
■ Strategic Planning ■ Strategic Parmerships & ■ Co^umty Outreach
. Budget Management Relationship Building ■ Risk Assessment & Cnsis

■ Non-Profit Development ■ Market Research & Analysis Management

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE
V  — ■

CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF ROCKINGHAM COUNTY, Portsmouth, NH
Executive Director, 2007 to Present

Provide leadership iir the overall strategic and operadonal progtamnung. as weU as the execution and sustainability of the
mission As the face of a naoonaUy accredited Child Advocacy Center, provide outreach to partner agenaes to include but not
limited to Domestic Violence & Sexual Assault Advocates, Prosecuting Attorneys, New Hamps^e Department of HeJA a
Human Services, Internet Crimes Against Children Task Force, and the state Victims of Crime Act office. Responsibiliaes
include:

Program Impact: Coordinate a team approach with 39 police departments, Federal Bureau of Investigation, Homeland
Secu^, county attorney's office, child protective serv-ices, and mental and medical health providers; se^e ovex 300^0
residents within Rockingham County; ensure programmatic exceUence and maximum unpactj
operational benchmarks, setting timelines, and making child safety our number one pnority. More than doubled corpora
and individual donor base.

Financial Managementi Overcame limited reserve in operatmg funds and a drop in state and county funding follo^g
the economic crisis whUe growing the operating reserve; provide oversight for mvested ^
giving program with the NH Charitable Foundation to support the long-term mission and vision, attracted over 51.75
million in private donations while saving Rockingham County over $4 million.

Outreach: Increased the use of outside resources such as volunteers, retired citizens, and university interns to expand
services to the community; spokesperson in the community and media through press releases, soaal networking, and
television and radio spots. Responsible for press releases and media relations.

PubUc PoUcy: Conducted extensive outreach and networking with state and local public
on Members of the House and Senate Appropriations Committee to reauthorizmg the Victims of Child Abuse Act
Senate Bill 366 casino bill to address the funding problems facing child abuse victims.

Risk Assessment/Crisis Management: Developed a 24-hour Homicide Protocol for the New Hampshire Attorney
General for children that wimess a homiade. CoUaborate with the NH Internet Crimes agamst Children Task Force on
the investigadon, intervention and prevention of computer-faciUtated crimes agamst children.

Leadership- Led and coordinated the community stake holders panel, which included members of commumty groups, inAe"r^g pmcess of six fmalists for PortLouth Chief of PoUce presented by the International Assoaanon of
Chiefs of Police



COLDWELL BANKER RESIDENTIAL BROKERAGE, Portsmouth, NH
Real Estate Broker, 2004 to 2007

.  Entrepreticurial Leadership: Define business strategy, market research, customer contact, and sales support; emphasis
on market assessment, developing pricing proposals, sales forecasts, and an operation and profit plan.

• Marketing & Sales: Developed coUateral, direct mail programs, advertising, and joint marketmg alliances; signiBcant
customer contact, market assessment, pricing analysis, direct sales and contract negotiation.

INTERNATIONAL & AMERICAN WOMEN'S CLUBS OF AMSTERDAM & LONDON, 2002 to 2003
.  Volunteer/Fundraising: Joined the social and nonprofit organization with an objective of fostering an understan^g

among people of different cultures, lifestyles, and nations while supporting local chanties that benefited women and
children. Organized fundraising events and coUaborated with chanties throughout the local Amsterdam commumty.

MARCONI COMMUNICATIONS, Petaluma, CA (Formerly Mariposa Technology, Inc.)
Director of Market Intelligence & Commupications, 2000 to 2002

Recruited by CEO to broaden Mariposa's position in the global telecommunicadons nrarkct. Reramcd by the Mjucom Global
executive team to develop and implement marketing programs to identify portfobo gaps, attracuve
alliances. ResponsibiUties included gathering market data and synthesixmg key compeutors, industry trends,
forecasts. Selected achievements include:

. Worked on a cross functional team to translate complex technologies into clear, market-focused product

.  Provided the research data to enhance decision-making capability and contribute to the achievement of a $390M business
plan objective in 2001. . - , ,

. Managed outside suppUers and industry parmerships to ensure consistenr incorporation of products and systems whil
coordinating with legal and outside counsel to evaluate viability of third party relationships.

•  Developed marketing collateral, conference presentations, and white papers for publication.
.  Responsible for company-wide product and system definition, including development of capabibnes needed to expand

into new lines of business as well as global markets.

EDUCATION

DOCTORATE, LEADERSHIP STUDIES, Organizational Development, Franklin Pierce Umversity, Rindge, NH
master of science, Business Administration, Southern New Hampshire, Manchester, NH
BACHELOR OF SCIENCE, Marketing, University of Massachusetts, Amherst, MA

PROFESSIONAL TRAINING CERTIFICATION

Executive Leadership Institute for Law Enforcement Executives - Certificate from FBI Law Enforcement Exec.
RlSri!ladership for Law Enforcement Executives - Certificate fiom FBI Law Enforcement Exec. Developent
clmrnd^nstitute for Law Enforcement Executives - Certificate fiom FBI Law Enforcetnent Execuuve Development
Extended Forensic Interview Training - Certificate from the National Children's Advocacy Cemer,

•  T • • rr'KsMr^n r/»rtirirare from the National Children's Advocacy Center, Huntsville, AL

Annual Symposium on Child Abuse, Huntsville, AL ^ c c rhildrpn's
SustainabiUty of Child Advocacy Centers: Funding through Branding - Certificate from the Nauonal Children s
Advocacy Center, Huntsville, ALGrant Writing ♦ Certificate from University of Southern Maine, Pordand, Mb nfriri*

Child Abuse !nd Neglect Protocols - Certificate of Training from New Hampshire Attorney Genial Office
Child Abuse Investigations Training - Certificate from Fox Valley Techmcal CoUcge, Appleton,



PROFESSIONAL AFFILIATIONS

Rockingham County Chiefs Association (RCCA) - Secretary-elect
Great Bay Community College - Chair of the Student'Development Advisory Board
International Association of Chiefs of Police — Associate Member
University of New Hampshire's Peter T. Paul School of Business and Economics - Adjunct Instructor
Leadership Seacoast - 2004 graduate
Granite Bank - Advisory Board Member
New Hampshire Network of Children's Advocacy Centers -Vice Chair
Portsmouth Rotary Club past board member
Community Leadership Award - University of New Hampshire Community Leadership Program

PROFESSIONAL PUBLICATIONS

Funding Intelligent Transportation Solutions through PubUc/Private Partnerships - Prcsentanon and pubbcaoon to
the Third World Congress and International Bndge, Tunnel and Turnpike Association on how mnovanve telecommunicanon
and state government partnerships can work to develop state-of-the-art methods to resolve funding problems.

Resrructuring New Hampshire's Child Advocacy Centers; Forging Effective AlUanees - A diss«tadon on collaborative
decision-making model for utilizing local knowledge and input within the context of Child Advocacy Center development and
the state's ability to combat child abuse.
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or lOCKMOHAM COUNTY

The sofe place for kids.

Program Coordinator/Forensic Interviewer
Child Advocacy Center'-Job D^cription

'  I .

REPORTS TO: Executive Director

NATURE AND SCOPE: Oversee the coordination and administration of forensic interviewing, case

management, as well as conduct child forensic interviews; assist participants of the multidisciplinary
team (MOT); coordinate and monitor case progress; maintain client files; coordinate case review;
provide community education and outreach.

ESSENTIAL FUNCTIONS:

• A leadership role that supports the vision, mission, and philosophy of the CACRC at both the
organizational and departmental level.

• Assists the Executive Director with day-to-day operations.

• Coordinate GAG services with participating agencies including child protection (DGYP), law
enforcement, county prosecutors, local crisis centers, and medical and mental health providers to
ensure a timely and well-coordinated response to requests for service.

• Assists in the gathering and reporting of program data, quality assurance and outcome evaluation as
well as monthly status reports.

• Facilitates Pre- and Post-Interview meetings with MDT members and families.
• Conducts Forensic Interviews of Children ages 3 to 17

• Assists with crisis management services to children and families seen in the course of a Forensic
Interview process with appropriate safety planning and system advocacy.

• Consistently demonstrates leadership skills that are in support of the vision, mission, and
philosophy of the Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham.
• Performs such other duties as assigned by the Executive Director

• Participates in CACRC special projects. i
• Works alongside the other Forensic Interviewer for training and job shadowing as necessary.

MINIMIM KNOWLEDGE, SKILLS AND ABILITIES REQUIRED:

• Master's level education in Social Work, Counseling, Criminal Justice, Public Administration or a
related iReld is preferred.

• Five (5).to eight (8) years' experience in a providing social wofk/legal/advocacy services in a
community setting.

: • Strong communication and interpersonal skills so as to maintain strong, positive relationships with
individuals of diverse backgrounds, cultures and experiences.

• Strbng written and oral communications skills so as to complete forms, reports, grants, and other
written materials.



• Knowledge of the child forensic interview, including but not limited to, a working knowledge of
dynamics of child development, child sexual abuse, working knowledge of law enforcement, and the
protocols required for a valid interview defensible in court.

• Demonstrate strong and creative problem solving skills.

• Strong program management and team building skills with an ability to manage time and projects
effectively.

• Strong organizational skills.

COMPENSATION

•  Position is based upon grant availability
•  Full-time

•  Excellent Benefit Plan

Please send a letters of interest and a resume to the attention of Maureen Sullivan, Executive Director,
msullivan@communitycampus.org
Or

Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham County
100 Campus Drive, Suite 11
Portsmouth, NH 03801

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, the above is intended to summarize
the essential functions of and requirements for the performance of this job. It is not meant
to be an exhaustive list of miscellaneous duties and responsibilities that may be requested
in the performance of this job.



Child Advocacy Center
For Rockingham County (NH)

Forensic Interview Specialist/Coordinator

JOB SUMMARY

Forensic Interview Specialist/Coordinator to conduct forensic interviews of children who
have made allegations of sexual abuse and/or exploitation or severe physical abuse.
Consistently demonstrates professional behavior and leadership skills that are in support
of the vision, mission, and philosophy of the GAG. The interviewer must have a solid
knowledge base related to child sexual abuse, exploitation, physical abuse, severe
neglect, and investigations. Coordinate center services with participating agencies,
including child protection, law enforcement, prosecutors, medical and mental health
personnel.

Responsible for scheduling of coordinated interviews, medical exams, making
appropriate referrals and consultation as necessary.

QUALIFACTIONS
V

Masters Degree in Social Work or related field preferred. Bachelor Degree in Social
Work or related field is required, and a minimum five-year direct work experience in
working with abused children and their families. Completion of specialized forensic
interview training, which includes but is not limited to, a working knowledge of
dynamics of child sexual and physical abuse, ability to engage children of all ages in the
forensics interview, and a working knowledge of investigating procedures.

1. Valid Drivers License

2. Reliable Transportation
3. Proof of Insurance

4. Criminal/Background Check
5. Excellent Verbal, Written and Technical Communication Skills

RESPONSIBILITIES

Interview children ages 3 to 18 years of age, and individuals with special circumstances
such as adults with mental disabilities. Provide court testimony when required.
Determine priority level according to referral information and CAC protocols.
Ability to respond to cultural differences present among the organizations, population and
staff is required. Participate in monthly case review.
Facilitate pre- and post-interview multidisciplinary case meetings.
Manage internet case tracking system.
Keep informed of current research surrounding child abuse issues, and participate in
mandatory training.
Adhere to the laws of confidentiality.
Knowledge base of local professionals and their specialties for the purpose of referral.



Work with and make recommendations for appropriate community referrals for the child
victim and their non-offending family members.
Work closely with community professionals to coordinate services for child victims.
Participate in the presentation of training programs and workshops for other agencies.
Develop and maintain interagency communication.
Represent the CAC in center related activities, including fund raising initiatives.
Prepare and submit grants written in necessary timelines for continued funding.
Perform other tasks and responsibilities as requested.

Compensation: $32,500 - $45,000

Commensurate with education and experience. Position is based upon grant availability.
Full time/flexible schedule a must.



Executive Director: Maureen Sullivan, DA, MBA. Responsible for the overall direction and
delivery of services while supporting and supervising staff. Facilitate the collaboration among
the agencies responsible for protecting children while maintaining the National Children's
Alliance accreditation standards along with the New Hampshire Attorney General's protocols on
Child Abuse and Neglect.
Program Coordinator/Forensic Interviewer: Brooke Murphy, MSW. Manages the
coordination of all interviews and monthly case review meetings; organize public education to
other child abuse investigation professionals and training for child abuse professionals. In
addition, conduct forensic interviews of children who have made allegations of sexual or severe
physical abuse under RSA 169-C for the Division for Children, Youth, and Families.
Intake/Forensic Interviewer: Emily Thomas, BA in Health Science with a concentration in
Substance Abuse and Addiction. Provides support services to children and family members,
assist the multidisciplinary team, coordinate and monitor case progress, maintain client files,
assist in the coordination of multi-agency case review and forensic interviewing of children.

Name Salary Funded by VOCA VOCA funded

Grant Portion

Maureen Sullivan 87,500 36% 31,500

Brook Murphy 50,000 81% 40,500

Emily Thomas 42,750 81% 34,628



CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER of ROCKINGHAM COUNTY

Andrew Chace - Chair

603-319-3130 (work)
andrew.w.chaceraamof.com

Board Member Since: 5/2016

Samantha Mick - Secretary
Ramaiitha.mickf211fe.com

Board Member Since: 5/2016

Sally Aldrich - Vice Chair
207-251-4800 (work) ,,
Board Member Since: 4/2011

Erik Johnson, CPA - Treasurer
erikfaieri cna.com

Board Member Since: 9/2017

Paula Baxley
. Board Member Since: 5/2018

David r, Salois
Davldts/SicomcasLnet

Board Member Since: 1/2018

Marion Crombie
marion.crombief2lfedex.com

Board Member Since: 8/2018

Angela Ferris
AnBela.ferrisfaibaneor.com

Board Member Since: 5/2018 . . .

ChiefRichard Sawyer
929-4444 (work)
rsawverf2)hamDtoni>d.com

Board Member Since: 09/2016

Kristina Seid

Board Member Since: 12/2018

Julie Golkowski
eeolko4f2loutlook.com.

Board Member Since: 1/2011

Kellie Higgenbotham
411 Dover Point Road

Dover, NH 03820
. Kahieesi9f2lemail!com
Board Member Since: 12/2018

Captain Frank Warchol
Portsmouth Police Department
3 Junkins Avenue

Portsmouth, NH 03801
.603-610-7630 (work)
fw9rrholf21cifvofportsmouth.com
Board Member Since: 5/2016

I

Sarah Neilsdn
Board Member Since: 10/2014

v.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS* REPORT

The Board of Directors
Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Incorporated
Portsmouth, New Hampshire

We have audited the accompanying financial statement of Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Incorporated (a 501Cc)(3) non
profit organization), which comprise the statement of financial position as of December 31,2014, and the related statements
of activities and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparaUon and feir presentation of these financial statements in accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, wd
maintenance of internal control relevant to the pr^aration and feir presentation of the financial statements that are fi*ee fi-om
material misstatement, whether due to fi-aud or error.

Auditors' Responsibility .. ^ .
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our au^t. We conducted our audit m
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of Amcnca. Those standards that we plan
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are tcc fi-om material
misstatement. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and ^
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgement, includmg the asse^ment of the ns^ of
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fi-aud or error. In makmg^osc nsk
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial
to design audit procedures that arc appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An aud t also includes evaluating
the appropriateness of the accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made bymanagcmcnt.as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. , .. . ■ e a-*

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropnate to provide a basis for our audit opmion.

o^lpfiuon, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respMts. theSeacoas?ChUdAdvocacy Center,Incorporated as of December 31.2014, and thechangwmits net assets and Its cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted m the United States of Amcnca.

Report on Supplementary Information u i m.
Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming an opinion on the financial statements as a whole. Die
schedule of fiincUonal expenses is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a '
statements. Such information is the responsibility of the Organization's management and was dcnved fi_om
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The "^fo^^tion hw been
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the financial statements and certain additional p^cd^es,
including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying and offier accounting records "s®d to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves and
Editing standards generally accepted in the United States Of America. In our opinion, the schedule of functional expenses
is fairly stated on all material respects in relation to the financial statements as a whole.

YOUNGCLAUS & COMPANY, PLLC

North I^pton.New^

Y oungc^iQS^Simth
Public AccountantinedvC

July 3,2015 ,

65 LAFAYETTE ROAD SUITE 102 NORTH HAMPTON. NH 03862 PHONE: (603) 964-2772 FAX: (603) 964-2727
WWW.YOUNGCLAUSCO.COM



SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
DECEMBER 31, 2014

ASSETS

Current Assets:

Cash

Prepaid Insurance

Property and Equipment;

Equipment and Furniture

Leasehold Improvements

Other Assets:

Security Deposit

TOTAL ASSETS

LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

Current Liabilities:

Accounts Payable

Accrued Payroll

Accrued Compensated Absences

Total Current Liabilities

Net Assets:

Unrestricted

179.750

3,076

Total Current Assets \i2,S26

23,618

2,314

25,932

Less: Accumulated Depreciation
eio

Net Property and Equipment

500

$  183,865

$  1,775

4,488

1,613

7,876

175,989

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
2



SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

Contributions

Fundraising

Grants

Interest Income

TOTAL REVENUES AND OTHER SUPPORT

113,163

86,140

45,950

17

245.270

EXPENSES

Program Services

Management and General

Fundraising

TOTAL EXPENSES

CHANGE IN UNRESTRICTED NET ASSETS

136,605

43,857

68,001

248.463

(3,193)

NET ASSETS. BEGINNING OF YEAR

NET ASSETS, END OF YEAR

179.182

$  175,989

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
3



SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

Increase (Decrease) In

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cosh Flows From Operating Activities:

Increasc/(Decrcase) in Unrestricted Net Assets S (3,193)
Adjustments to Reconcile Change in Net Assets

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities:
Depreciation

Change In Assets (Increase)/Decrease:

Prepaid Expense (3.077)
Change in Liabilities Increase/(Decrease):

Accounts Payable

Accrued Expenses

200

313

Net Cash Provided By Operating Activities
344

Cash Flows From Investing Activities:

Purchase of Property and Equipment

Net Cash (Used In) Investing Activities ^2251

Cash Flows From Financing Activities:

Net Cash (Used In) Financing Activities

Net Increase (Decrease) In Cash

Cash At Beginning of Year 180,144

Cash At End of Year ^ 179.750

Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information:
No interest or income taxes were paid for the years ended December 31,2014.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements
4



SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
DECEMBER 31, 2014

ORGANIZATION AND SUMMARY: OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Orgnnlzation

The Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Incotporatcd was formed under the laws of the State of New Hampshire and
has been granted an exemption from federal income taxes under section 501 (c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code.
Tlirough grants and publjc support this Organization's mission is to provide a safe environment for the
evaluation of alleged child abuse for children 3-18 years of age. Through collaboration of public, private and
community partners, the Organization works to ensure the safety, health and well being of abused children.

Revenue Recognition

In accordance with FASB ASC 958-605, contributions, including unconditional promises to give, are recorded as
received. All contributions arc available for unrestricted use unless specifically restricted by the donor.
Conditional promises to give are recognized when the conditions on which they depend are substantially met.
As of December 31, 2014 the Organization had no temporarily or restricted net assets.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect ceilain reported
amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid debt instruments purchased
with a maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The Company held no cash equivalents as of
December 31,2014.

Punctional Allocation of Expenses

The costs of providing the various programs and other activities have been summarized on a functional basis.
Accordingly, certain costs have been allocated amongst the programs and supporting services benefited.

Property and Equipment

Furniture and equipment are reported in the statements of financial position at cost, if purchased, and at fair value
at the date of donation, if donated. Equipment is capitalized if it has a cost of $1,000 or more and a useful life
when acquired of more than one (1) year. Repairs and maintenance that do not significantly increase the useful
life of the asset are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation is computed using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets as follows:
Furniture and Equipment 5-7 years
Leasehold Improvements '5 Years

Depreciation expense for the year ended December 31,2014 was $200, Fixed assets are reviewed for impairment
when a significant change in the asset's use or another indicator of possible impairment is present. No impairment
losses were recognized in the current period.



SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER. INCORPORATED

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT
DECEMBER 31,2014

2. ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES
Full-time employees of the Organization earn paid days off (PDO) depending on continuous length of service
and hours worked. Employees are allowed to carry over a maximum of 40 hours (5 PDO) from one calendar year
to the next. At December 31,2014, accrued compensated absences totaled $1,613.

3. RENTAL LEASES

In November 2012, Seacoast Child Advocacy Center, Incorporated entered into an agreement with the Foundation
for Seacoast Health to lease space for offices and meeting rooms. This lease was for a term of three (3) years and
stated monthly lease payments are $737 which includes janitorial and utility expenses.
The Organization also has a second location in Derry, New Hampshire which is a month to month lease agreement.

Future minimum rental and lease payments are as follows:
For the Year Ended December 31,2015

4, INCOME TAXES AND UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

The Organization qualifies under the Section 50lCc)C3) of the Internal Revenue Code and, therefore, no provision
for federal or state income taxes has been recorded. The Organization's income tax returns are subject to
examination by taxing authorities generally for the years ended December 31,2011,2012,2013 and 2014.

The Organization follows FASB Accounting Standards Codification, which provides guidance on accounting for
income taxes recognized in an organization's financial statements. The guidance prescribes a recognition and
measurement of a tax position taken or expected to be taken in a tax return and also provides guidance on
derecognition, classification, interest, and penalties, accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transition. As
of December 31,2014, the Organization has no uncertain tax positions that qualify for either recognition or
disclosure in the financial statements.

5. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

For the purpose of recognition and disclosure in these financial statements, management of the Organization has
evaluated subsequent events through July 3,2015, which is the date these financial statements were
available to be issued.
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SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INCORPORATED
SCHEDULE OF FUNCTIONAL EXPENSES

SEE INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31,2014

Payroll

Payroll Taxes and Benefits
Registration and Event Fees

Rent

Dues and Subscriptions

Payroll Processing Fee

Professional Fees

Office Supplies and Expense

Postage

Printing

Training

Travel

Telephone

Supplies

Depreciation

Meals and Meeting Expense

Miscellaneous

Insurance

Total

Program

Services

Management

& General

S

Fundraising Total

84,733 $  28,244 $ 28,244 $  141,222

20,474 6,825 6,825 34,124

- 28,935 28,935

17,718 4,430 • 22,148

2,660 680 200 3,540

1,263 421 421 2,105

2,325 1,302 -
3.627

889 593 1,483 2,965

183 61 365 609

249 83 497 829

2,045 -
- 2,045

1,464 209 418 2,091

793 198 - 991

106 105 316 528

200 -
• 200

620 207 207 1,034

268 89 89 446

615 410 -
1,025

$  136.605 $ 43.857 $ 68.001 S 248,463



ATTORNEY GENERAL

DEPARTMENT OF JUSTICE

, 33 CAPITOL STREET

CONCORp. NEW HAMPSHIRE 03301-6397

GORDON J. MACDONALD

ATTORNEY GENERAL

ANN M. RICE

DEPUTY ATTORNEY GENERAL

June 6, 2017

His Excellency, Governor Christopher T. Sununu
and the Honorable Council

State House

Concord New Hampshire 03301

REOUESTED ACTION

Authorize the Department of Justice to enter into subgrants with the agencies
listed below in the amount of $444,000 from the Federal Victim of Crime Act Grant
for the purpose of supporting programs providing direct services to victims of crime
upon Governor and Executive Council approval through June 30, 2020. 100%
Federal Funds.

Funding is available in account # 02-20-20-201510-5021 entitled "Victims of
Crime Act" upon the availability and continued appropriation of funds in future
operating budgets as follows;

Aeencv

Carroll County Attorney's Office

Coos County Attorney's Office

Rockingham County CAC

Fiscal Year Totals

Vendor#

177369-6007

177270-6006

158817-6001

FY 2018

Amount

$32,500

$40,500

$75,000

$148,00

0

FY 2019

Amount

$32,500

$40,500

$75,000

$148,00
0

FY 2020

Amount

$32,500

$40,500

$75,000

$148,00

0

EXPLANATION

In Federal Fiscal Year 2015, Congress increased the amount of funding to be
made available to the states from the Crime Victims Fund to support programs providing
direct services to victims of crime. The corresponding increase for New Hampshire

Telephone 603'271-3668 • FAX 603-271-2110 • TDD Access: Relay NH 1-800>730'29G4



allowed the Department to allocate almost $6 million additional funds from FFY2015
and almost $6.5 million in additional funds from FFY2016 over the course of the four-

year grant period for each Federal Fiscal Year award.
/

One of the federally defined priorities for the allocation of the funds was to
increase subgrants to direct service providers that have been the core, stable, accessible
organizations that victims have historically relied upon.

The Carroll County Attomey^s Office and Coos County Attorney's Office have
been long standing and proven subgrantees. They will both use their respective subgrant
to fund victim advocates who provide a wealth of services including educating, guiding
•and assisting victims through the criminal justice system and referring victims to other
local services.

The Rockingham County Child Advocacy Center (CAC) has also been a long
standing and proven subgrantee. The purpose of the CAC is to standardize the
investigation of child abuse and neglect cases and minimize trauma to child victims by
limiting the number of interviews to which a child must be subjected, and to coordinate
services to a child using a multi-disciplinary team approach. The subgrant will be used
to enhance current services.

In the event that federal funds become no longer available, general funds will not
be requested to support this program.

Please let me know if you have any questions concerning this request. Your
consideration is greatly appreciated.

Respectfully sub^tted,
•

Gordon J. MacOonald

Attorney General
#1729374



GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrccipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1.1. State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address
33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

13. Subrecipient Name
Carroll County Attorney's Office

1.^. Subrecipient Address
PC Box 152, Ossipee, NH 03864

1.5 Subrecipient Phone
#603-539-7751

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-

5021-072-5000574

1.7. Completion Date
June 30,2020

1.8. Grant Limitation

$ 97300

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Katbleen B. Cair

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for accqptance of this grant,
inrliidinir if annlicable RSA 31:95-b."

I<tl. Subredpien^ignature 1 . 142. Name & Tijle of Subreci^nt Sienor 1 .

Subrecipient Signature 2 If Applicable Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 If Applicable

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of Cay-iTM »on "V
/ /y, before the undersigned officer, personally appea|^ the person identified in block 1.12., known
to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11., and
acknowledged that he/she executed this document in t^ie capacity indicat^ in block 1.13^
1.13.1. Sig^tureof Nota
(Seal) ^xoAa A.

jry Public or Justice of the Peace

J  %CoiwiWo«b<pir~Ju«*eia.201?
1.13.2. Name & Title oi N̂otary Public or Justice of tb^ Peace

1,14. State Agency Si^ature(s) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

1.16. Approygl by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By: ̂  Assistant Attornpy Geucral, On: ^/Tf f ( ̂
1.17. Approval iy Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: / /

identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as '*thc State"), the Sifbrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hercbafter referred to as
•the Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as 'the Project").

Rev. 9/2015 Page 1 of 6 Subrecipient Initial(s):

Date; T// ̂



4.

4.J.

4.2.

5.

5.1

5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

ARRA COVERED. Except as otherwise specirically provided for herein, the
Subrecipicnt shtU pcrfonn the IVoject in. with respect to, the State of New
Hampshire. 9.2.

. effective date- completion of project.

This Agreement, and aO obiigsiions of the parties hereuoder. thail become
eflective on the date on the date of approval of thb Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hunpshire if required (btock (.17). or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("the effective date").
Except OS otherwise tpecincally provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shaU be completed in ITS entirety prior to (he date in
block l.'7 (hereinafter referred to as Completion Date"),
ORANT AMOUNT: LIMrTATlQN ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identined and more particularty described in EXHZBIT fi,
attached hereto. 9.5.

The ntanns of, and schedule of ptymern shall be as set forth in EXHSIT B.
In accordance with the provisjoiu set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration of 10.
the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subp^graph 5.5 of these general provisioos, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount The State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or pennitted. to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7<.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to dw Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred b)' the
Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Subrecipient for (he Project.^ The State shall have no II.
Itibilitles to die Subrecipient otha than the Grant Amount. 11.1.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the cootraiy. and notwithstanding

circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, 11.1.1
or at^ly made, hereunda exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of 11.1.2
these gen^ provisions. 11.1.3

6. mMPlJANCE BY .SUBRECIPIENT Wrm UWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.1.4
connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply 11.2.
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orden of federal, state, county, or
municipal authorities whkb shall impose any obligations or duty upon die 11.2.1
Subrecipient, including the acquisition ̂  any and all necessary pennits.
RF.CORDS and ACCOUNTS

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion Dale
the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in
connection with the Project, including, but not limited to, costs of administration. 11.2.2
transponatioD, insurince, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services.
Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bilb and other similar
documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecrpient's oonna] business houre, and as often as 11.2.3
the State shall demand, die Subrecipient shall make avaibble to die State all
records pertaining to matten covered by thb Agreement The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
permit die State to'audit examine, end reproduce such records, end to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, pa)rolb, records of personnel, data (as
that term b hereinafter defined), and other information relating to all matters
covered by thb Agreemoit As used in thb paragraph, "Subrecipient" includes 12.
all persons, natural or nctkxial, aftUiated with, controlled by, or under common 12.1.
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provbkms
PERSONNEL.

The SubiecipieDt shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to
perform die Project The Subrectpieiit warrans that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project and shall be properly licensed 12.2.
and authorized to perform tu^ Project under all applicable bws.
The Subrecipient shall not hire, and h thai] not permit any subcontractor,
subgnntee, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it b eogaged in a
combined effort to perform the Project to hire any person who has a contractual 12.3.
relationshtp with die State, or who u a State officer or employee, elected or
appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the reprtsenlattve of the State hcreunder. In the event
of any dbpute hereunder, the interpretation of thb Agreement by the Gram
Officer, and his/her decbion on any dbpute, shall be final. 12.4.
DATA: RETENTION OF DATA: ACCESS.

As used in dib Agreement the word "data" shall mean all inforrnaiion and things
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, dib Agreement induding, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files, 13.
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reprodxKtions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.

8.1.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 2 of 6

computer programs, computer printoub, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finbhed or unfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipient ahall grant
to the State, or any person designated 1^ it, unrestricted access to all data for
examination, duplication, publication, transbtion, sale, dUpostl, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyrigia in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.

On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for dial purpose utider
thb Agreement, shall be the property of (he State, and shall be returned to the
State upon demand or upon tennination of thb Agreement for any reason,
whkhewr shall first occur.

The State, and anyone it shaO designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, dbclose, distribute and othervise use, in whde or in part, all data.
CONDmONAl- NATURE HR AnRFEMENT Notwithstanding anything in
thb Agreement to the contrary, aO obligatioiis of the State hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the avaibbility or continued appr^jriation of hinds, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
hmds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those funds, (he Slate shall

have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, if ever, and
shall have the right to terminate thb Agreement immedbtely upon giving the
Subrecipient notice of such terminatian.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or omissions of die Subrecipient shall
constitute an evem of defauh hereunder (hereinafto- referred to as "Evoits of

Defauh");
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any tcpon required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to. the records required hereuoder, or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of thb Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may take any one, or
more, or all, of the foUowing actions;
Give the Subrectpient a written notice specilying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied wjthio, in the absence of a greater or kssa
specification of lime, thirty (30) days ftom the date of the notice; aitd if the Event
of Default b not timely remedied, terminate thb Agreement, effective two (2)
days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; and
Give the Sid>recipieot a writteo notice specifying the Event of Defauh and
suspending all payments to be made under thb Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
deterraines thai the Subrecipient has cured the Evem of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set off against any other obligatioo the State may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and punue any of ib remedies at law or in
equity, or both.

In the evem of any early termination of thb Agreement for any reason otha than
the completion of die Fioject, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant OfTica,
not bter than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, a report (hadnafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail ail Projea Work
performed, and the Grant Amount etmed, to and mduding the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination unda paragraphs 10 or 13.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall entitle the
Subredpimt to receive that portion of the Oiinl amount earned to and including
the date of termination.

In the evem of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provutons. the approval of such a Termination Report by the State ihaS in no
event rdieve the Subrecipiem ftom any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipient*) breach of its obligitions
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contxtry, eitha the State or,
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunda, the
Subrecipient, may terminate thb Agrecmem without cause upco thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT OP INTpRP-ST No officer, manber of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, offica or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, svho exercises any functions or responsibilities in the

Subrecrpieot lnitial(8);

Dal»: »/////'>



14,

IS.

16.

18.

19.

20.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

approvs] of the undeitaking or canying out of such Project, shall paiticipate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporelian, pertiKrship. or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
SUBREC[PIENT'.<t RELATION TO THE STATE. In the performance of this

Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee
of the Subrecipient are in all respera independent contractors, and are neither
agents nor empipyees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any of its
ofTicers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantecs, shall have
authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMFNT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,
or otherwise trarufer any interest in this Agreement wiftout the prior writleri
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set fortii in Exhibit A without the
prior writien consent of the State.
INPEMNTFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnily and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and ell
losses suffered by the State, its officers and cmplc^«es, and any and iJI claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its ofTicen and employees, by or 21.
on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out of
(or which may be claimed to arise out of) tiw acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the SubrecipienL
Notwithstanding the foregoing nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. Thb covenant shall survive the termination of this 22.
agreement.
TNSITBANrP.ANDRONP.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any subcontr^tor. subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance:

Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for all
emi^oyees engaged in (he performance of the Project, and
Compehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than Sl.000,000 per occurrence
and S2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
SSOO.OOO for property damage in any one incident; and

23.

24.

The polides described in subparegraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the State of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days afler written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACR No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
a/ter any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its ri^ts with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event No express waiva of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any furthb or other default on the part of the SubrecipienL
NOTICE Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing ̂  certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post OfTlce addressed to the parties at the adidresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto end only after approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Comcil of the State of
New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRlJCTttiN OP Ar.ttFPMF>rr AND TERMS Tliis Agreement shall be

construed in accordance with the bw of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considoed a part of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties haeto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit
ENTIRE AGBPFMT^ This Agreement, which may be ocecuted in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between die parties, end supersedes ail prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set fortii in Exhibit C hereto
are incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 3 of 6 Subrecipient Initial(s):
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Carroll County Attorney's Office as Subrecipient shall receive a grant from the New

Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred for services provided to

victims of crime in compliance with the terms, conditions, specifications, and scope of

work as outlined in the Subrecipient's application under state solicitation 2016VOCA2.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures

described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the <|uarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, the first quarterly

report is due on April 15'^ or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient are required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses
both state fiinds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of
this office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting

documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years after the close of the project.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual application to the DOJ for review and
compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:

NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-1261 orTariya.Pitman@doj.nh.gov.
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EXHIBIT B

-SCHEDULE/TERMS OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's

approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Sub-Recipient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

, 3a.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $32,500 of the

total Grant Limitation from 7/1/17 dates 6/30/18, with approved expenditure

reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance.

3b.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed. $32,500 of the
total Grant Limitation from 7/1/18 dates 6/30/19, with approved expenditure

reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance.

3c.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $32,500 of the
total Grant Limitation from 7/1/19 dates 6/30/20, with approved expenditure

reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal ftmding and program
performance.

Page 5 of 6
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

1. Subrecipicnts shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the VOCA Federal Grant Program Rule and Special Conditions
as Appendix 1 which is subject to annual review.

C?dS

y//9//.
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Appendix 1

Special Conditions to the State of New Hampshire Grant Agreement

VOCA Funding

1. Compliance by Subrecipient with Laws and Regulations, expressly including the following:

a. Adherence to the following requirements of:

i. Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 42 U.S. Code Sections Sections 10404(a)(2) and
1404(b)(1) and (2), 42 U.S.C. 10603(a)(2) and (b)(1) and (2) and the Program Rule

implemented in the Federal Register Vol. 81, No. 131, July 8,

2016 28CFR Part

94. https://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2016/07/08/2016-
16085/victims-of-crime-act-victim-assistance-program

ii. Nondiscrimination requirements Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as
amended;

iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended;

Subtitle A, Title 11 of the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA) (1990);

Title IX of the Education Amendments of 1972;

The Age Discrimination Act of 1975;

Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations (28 CFR Part 42,
Subparts C, D, E, and G; 28 CFR Parts 35, 38 and 39);

specifically including any applicable requirements regarding written
notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries.
Part 38 of 28 C.F.R., a DOJ regulation, was amended effective May 4,
2016. Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit
specific forms of discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief,
a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a
religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that
pertain to subrecipient organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly
religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to
subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.
2 CFR Part 200.300(a) Adherence to the financial and administrative
requirements as set forth in the effective edition of the Office of Justice
Programs "Financial Guide". A copy of these guidelines is available
at http://oiD.gOv/financialguide/DOJ/pdfs/2015 DOJ FinancialGuide.pdf

IV.

V.

VI.

VII.

VIII.
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b. Pursuant to Executive Order 13513,"Federal Leadership On Reducing Text

Messaging While Driving" 74 Fed. Reg. 51225, the Subrecipient agrees to enforce

policies banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during
the course of performing work funded by this grant, and to establish workplace
safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

c. The Hatch Act restricts the political activity of individuals principally employed by
state or local executive agencies that work in connection with programs financed in
whole or part by federal loans or grants. The Hatch Act prohibits a grant-funded
person from becoming a candidate for public office in a partisan election. For further
information please refer to U.S.C. Title 5 Sections 1501-1508 and Title 5 of the Code
of Federal Regulations part 151.

2. Reports and Certifications Required:

a. Subrecipient will be required to file quarterly performance reports.

b. Subrecipient will be required to file quarterly expenditure reports and to provide
back-up documentation upon request.

c. NH Department of Justice will conduct regular desk reviews and biennial on-site
monitoring visits with all Subrecipients.

3. The Subrecipient agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, the Immigration and
Naturalization Service Employment Eligibility Form (1-9). This form is to be used by the
Subrecipient to verify that persons employed by the Subrecipient are eligible to work in the
United States.

4. The Subrecipient assures that no federal VOCA funds or match funds have been paid or
will be paid, by or on behalf of the Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of congress in connection
with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal grant or
cooperative agreement. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid
or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative
agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure
of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions.

Page 2 of 12
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5. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future
years.

6. The Subrecipient assures that information will be collected and maintained, where such

information is voluntarily furnished by claimants on crime victim applications, by race,
national origin, sex, age, and disability. This information will be submitted to the New

Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants. Management Unit.

7. All materials publicizing or resulting from award activities shall contain an acknowledgment

of the awarding agency assistance. An acknowledgment of support shall be made through

use of the following or comparable footnote: "Thjs project was supported by Award No.

2015-VA-GX-0007 awarded by the Office for Viptims of Crime, Office of Justice Programs

and administered through the New Hampshire Department of Justice."

8. Any publications (written, visual or sound), whether published through Federal grant funds
or matching funds, shall contain the following statements: "This project was supported by
(2015-VA-GX-0007) awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office of Justice

Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view in this document are those of the
author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.

Department of Justice."

9. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH

Department of Justice (>JHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on
or be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly
managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express
approval of the NH DOJ.

/

10. Any renovations to a building over 50 years old must be approved by the State Historical
Preservation Officer and by the federal VOCA Office before any work commences. These
approvals must be coordinated by the NH Department of Justice, Grants Unit.

11. The Subrecipient must utilize volunteers to assist in providing VOCA allowable victim
services unless extenuating circumstances justify the exclusion of volunteers, and a
volunteer waiver is obtained from the NH Department of Justice.

12. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims unless a

Page 3 of 12
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program income waiver is obtained from the NH Department of Justice. If permission to

generate program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding

scale that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant

allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

13. The Subrecipient agrees to assist victims in applving for Victims Compensation benefits.

Such assistance includes: identifying eligible victims; making reasonable efforts to notify
eligible victims of the availability of compensation; making reasonable efforts to explain

•  the program to victims; offering to assist victims with the application process when it is
reasonable to do so.

14. The Subrecipient understands that VOCA non-allowable personnel activities include:
general administration, prevention, active investigation and prosecution of criminal
activities, research and studies, lobbying, substanpe abuse treatment services, capital

expenses, compensation for victims of crime and fundraising.

15. The Subrecipient agency must promptly refer to the DOJ OIG any credible evidence that a
principal, employee, agent, contractor, subrecipient, subcontractor, or other person has
cither 1) submitted a false claim for grant funds under the False Claims Act; or 2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest,
bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving grant funds. This condition also applies
to any subrecipients. Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct should be reported to
the

OIG by-

Mail:

Office of the Inspector General

U.S. Department of Justice Investigations Division
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. Room 4706
Washington, DC 20530

E-mail: oig.hotline@usdoj.gov or hotline fax: (202) 616-9881
additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at www.usdoi.gov/oig.

16. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters
no Subrecipient under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
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subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to
sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts,

or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or
abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or

agency authorized to receive such information. The foregoing is not intended, and shall
not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene requirements applicable

to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates

to sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department

or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified information.

a. In accepting this award, the recipient—

i. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal

confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or

contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or

purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from

reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

ii. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring

its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements

that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict),
reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will

immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will
provide prompt written notification to the federal agency making

this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such

obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

b. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards

("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or both-
i. it represents that— it has determined that no other entity that

the recipient's application proposes may or will receive
award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"),
procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement
contract) either requires or has required internal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or

contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently

restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or

contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as

described above; and

ii. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate

victims of Crime Act-VQCA Assistance
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factual basis, to support this representation; and

iii. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds under

this award is or has been requiring its employees or

contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit

or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict),

reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to

or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to

the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or
permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

17. The Subrecipient agency understands and agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either
directly or indirectly, in support of any contract or subaward to either the Association of
Community Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN) or its subsidiaries, without the
express prior written approval of the NH Department of Justice and the Office of Justice
Programs.

18. The Subrecipient assures that federal funds received for this grant program will not be used
to supplant existing funds otherwise available for this victim assistance program.

19. Equipment purchased with VOCA funds shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the agency
inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost, percentage
of federal VOCA funds, and location. The Subrecipient agrees that the title to any
equipment purchased with VOCA funds will revert back to the New Hampshire
Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit, when it is no longer being used for the
VOCA program purposes for which it was acquired.

20. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it be
an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and any
^sociated management letters to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit.

21. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
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receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability,

a copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice,
Grants Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights,
Office of Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional
information regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website
at http://NVww.doi.nh.eov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are
awarded funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office,
and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

22. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may

entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when
necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them
comply with these requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet
at www.leD.gov.

23. The subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements
available online (either on the subrecipicnt's website, or the NH Department of Justice's,
or another publicly available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status
are considered in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the
extent that such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as
several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial statements.

24. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statement to NH Department of Justjce: I) affirmatively asserting that the
recipient is a non-profit organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and
available upon audit one of the following:
•  A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or;

A letter from the State of NH stating that the Subrecipient is a non-profit
organization operating within the state, or:

A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates its
non- profit status

Subrecipient that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should
also have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non-profit
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affiliate.

25. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including

reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award). The recipient, and any

subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the
trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients or individuals

defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the recipient or of any
subrecipient. The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related
to trafficking in persons are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafricking.htm (Award condition:
Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons
(including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)), and are ,
incorporated by reference here.

26. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events. The subrecipient at any tier, must
comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance
(including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that
term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food and/or beverages at such
conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences. Information on the pertinent DOJ
definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Post award Requirements" in the "2015
DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

27. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award
the recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and
effectiveness of activities under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the
manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or
other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the
Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modemization Act, and
other applicable laws.

28. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the Subrecipient at any tier — develops or
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delivers with OJP award ftjnds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for
Grantees and Subgrantees, available

at httD://oip.gov/funding/oiptrainingguidingprincipies.htm.

29. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY
2016) The Subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the

use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions,

including from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act,

2016, are set out at: ,

httD://oip.gov/funding/ExDlore/FY2016-ADDropriationsLawRestrictions.htm and are

incorporated by reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a.particular use of

federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an
appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact their grant manager for
guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of the grant
manager and OJP.

30. Subrecipient will authorize representatives of the Office for Victims of Crime and/or the
Office of the Chief Financial Officer access to and the right to examine all records,
books, paper or documents related to the VOCA grant.

31. Certification regarding debarment, suspension ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion

A person may be debarred or suspended for any of the causes listed in 28 CFR §67.305
and §67.405. A person who is debarred or suspended shall be excluded from Federal
financial and non-financial assistance and benefits under Federal programs and activities.
Debarment or suspension of a participant in a program by one Federal agency shall have
government wide effect. For purposes of this certification, "prospective lower tier
participant" shall refer to the Subrecipient.

Instructions for Certification:

a) By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing
the certification as set out.

b) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or
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debarment.

c) The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person
to whom this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant
leams that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by
reason of changed circumstances.

d) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal,"
"proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in
the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549.

e) The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the
department or agency with which this transaction originated.

f) The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower
tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

g) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is ,
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may check the Nonprocurement List.

h) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

i) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant
in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntary excluded from participation in
this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the
department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available
remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
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DEPARTMENT OF

JUSTICE STATE OF NEW

HAMPSHIRE

CERTIFICATION REGAROrNG DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY
AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

LOWER TIER COVERED

TRANSACTIONS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order
12549, Debarment and Suspension, 28 CFR §67.510, Participants' responsibilities. The
intent of this Order was to ensure that no subgrantee of federal funds had been restricted
from conducting business with the federal government due to any of the causes listed in 28
CFR §67.305 and 28
CFR §67.405.

By signing this document, you are certifying that neither your agency, nor its
principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in any transaction by any Federal department or
agency.

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to
this certification.

Name and Title of Head of Agency

Signature /Date

CARROLL COUNTY NH P.O BOX 152 OSSIPEE j^h 03864

Name and Address of Agency

Page 11 of 12
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32. Certification Regarding EEOP Required:
If required, within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for
approval, an acceptable Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28
CFR 42.301 et seq. or a Certification Form to both the NH DOJ and the Office of Civil
Rights, Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, DC
20531. Failure to submit an approved EEOP or Certification is a violation of the Program
Guidelines and Conditions and may result in suspension or termination of funding, until
such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. Additional information on EEOP
requirements may be found here: http:/^ip■gov/about/ocr/faq eeop.htm

The form and instructioDS can be found at: httD://oip.gov/about/ocr/Ddfs/cert.Ddf

33. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed $150,000. The Subrecipient at any tier, must
comply with all applicable requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a
noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $150,000). This condition applies to
agreements that - for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements - OJP
considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider a subaward).
The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in
a procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award
condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract (if contract would exceed $150,000)), and are incorporated by
reference here.

I have read and understand all 33 special provisions contained in this document:

l^ei'arrl (, L'< m (-/nn m
e and Title of ^thorized Representative ^

Signature Dafe
CARROLL COUNTY NH P 0 BOX 152 OSSIPEE,NH 03864

Name and Address of Agency

Page 12 of 12
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CORPORATE RESOLUTION

I, Mark Hounsell, hereby certify that I am duly elected Clerk of the Carroll County Commissioners. I

hereby certify the fpllowing is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Commissioners, duly called

and held on v.s/^V . 2017, at which a quorum of the Commissioners were present and voting.

VOTED: That Amanda Bevard. as Chairperson, is duly authorized, by majority vote of the BOC,

to enter into contracts or agreements on behalf of Carroll County with the State of New

Hampshire and any of Its agencies or departments and further Is authorized to execute any

documents which may In their judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this
vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as
of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. I further certify that It is understood that

the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person listed above
currently occupies the position indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To

the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed Individual to bind the corporation in
contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are exor^sly stated herein.

(Name)

HATFn: ATTEST: Clerk



Prim^
NH Public KM Meneeement uenangt CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange {Primex') is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated, Chapter S-B,
R>oied Risk Management Programs, in accordance with those statutes, Its Trust Agreement and b/l^, Primex' is authorized to provide pooled risk
management programs estabiished for the benefit of political subdivisions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex' is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below, In addition, Primex' may exterxl the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to ail of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, nrles, policies and procedures
that are appiicabia to the members of Pr^n>ex^ Including but not limited to the final and binding resoluUon of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Primex' Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Part/s per occurrence limit shall be deemed included in the Member's per occurrence Dmit, and
therefore shall reduce the Member's limH of iiabWty as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The Gmit shovm may have been reduced
by claims paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) ar>d Coverage B (Property
Damage Liability) only. Coverage's C (Public OfRciais Errors and Omissions}, D (Unfair Employment Practices), E (Employee Benefit Liability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are exduded from this provision of coverage.

The below named entity is a member in good standlr>g of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may.
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Prlmex^ As of the dale this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate is issued as a matter of information only artd confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by Ute coverage categories listed below.

Asrtlorpsrinp MsmOsr

Carroll County
95 Water Village Road
Ossipee. NH 03864

MembarAA/mOsr Company Affording Covtrtgd:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex'
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street

C)oncbrd. NH 03301-2624

X  General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Liability (describe)

□

1

7/1/2016 7/1/2017 Each Occurrence 5 5.000,000

General Aggregate $ S.000,000
Fire Damage (Any one
fire)

Med Exp (Any one person)

[Tu
De

itomobile Liability
ductible Comp and Coll:

Any auto

Combined Single Limit
(EmTi Aeddtnt)

Aggregate

"x Wrirfcers' ComoenaatJon & EmDlovera* Llabltltv 1/1/2017 1/1/2018 X  Statutory 52,000.000

Each Accident 52,000.000

Disease - EkA EirployM

Disease - Poscy lmi

|Property (Special Risk Includes Fire and Theft) Blanket Umit, Replacament
Cost (unlew otharwlte stated)

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER; AdditlonsI Covered Party Lose Peyee Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

Oy; 7<Wef

Dete: 4/24/2017 tdenver(f^hpr(mex.orgCarroll County
95 Water Village Road
Ossipee. NH 03864

Please direct inquires to:
Prtmex' Claims/Coverage Servlcee

603-225-2841 phone
003-226-3833 fax



GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrecipient hereby
Mutually agree as follows:
GENERAL PROVISIONS

1. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address
33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrecipient Name
Coos County Attomey*s Office

1.4. Subrecipient Address
55 School Street, Suite 141 Lancaster, NH 03584

1.5 Subrecipient Phone
#603-788-5559

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-

5021-072-5000574

1.7. Completion Date
June 30,2020

1.8. Grant Limitation

$ 121,500

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen B. Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31:95-b."

1.11. ̂ brecipmnt SignatureJ^ 1.12. Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 1

Subrecipient Sijmature 2 If Applicable Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 ifApplicable

1.13. Acknowledgment: State of New Hampshire, County of CLooi ,on /z^/O
/  , before the undersigned officer, personally appeared the person idjentified in block 1.12., known
to me (or satisfactorily proven) to be the person whose name is signed in block 1.11., and
acknowledged that he/she executed this document in the capacity indicated in block 1.12.

1.13.1. Signature of Notary Publi^r Justice of the Peace
(Seal)

1.13.:

l.L

Lame Public or Justice of the Peace

jiaOND. MOORE. NowyfHMe
BewoftMirHsmpshhe

6M^OoouMon Expiiw AuquM .2020

State Agency Signature(s) 1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

CQ<r\ cC
1.16. Approv^ by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

By:

to. Approval ny Anomey oenerai (rorm, suosiance aou Cixecuiiuo; (ii ot v, appruvi

'  ̂ Assistant Attorney General, On: 5^/?//(7
1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /  /

2.SC0PE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").

Rev. 9/2015 Page I of6 Subrecipient Initial(s)

Date: toll



5.2

5.3

5.4

5.5

3. AREA COVERED. Except ts otherwise specificelly provided for herein, the
Subrecipient shall perfonn the Project in, and with respect to, the Stale of New
Hampshire. 9-2.

4. EFFECTIVE DATE- COMPLETION OF PROJECT.

4.1. This Agreement, and ail obligations of the panies hcreunder, shall become
effective on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Couxil of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 (*nhe effective date").

4.2. Except as otherwise specifically provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
block 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").

3. fiRANT AMOUNT: UMITA-nQN QN AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.
5.1. The Grant Amount is identified and more particularty described in EXHIBIT B.

attached hereto.

The manner of, and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration of 10.
the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these gencriri provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The State shall withhold from the amount
otherwise payable to the Subrccipicnl under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permitted, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7<.
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Subrecipient for all expenses, of whatever nanire, incurred by the
Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State shall have no 11.
liabilities to the Subrecipient o^er than the Grant Amount 11.1.
Notwithstanding anything m this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of ell payments authorized, 11.1.1
or acmally made, hcreunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth in block 1.8 of 11.1.2
these general provisions. 11.1.3

6. COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.1.4
connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply 11.2.
with all statutes, laws regulations, and orders of federal, state, county, or
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the 11.2.1
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion Date
the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of all expenses incurred in
connection with the Project, ixluding, but not limited to, costs of administration, 11.2.2
transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and services.
Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar
documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at any time during the Subrecipient's normal business hours, and as often as 11.2.3
the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
pemii the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of all contracts, invoices, materials, pi^lb, records of ̂rsonnel, data (as
thai term is hereinafter defmed), and other information relating to all matters
covered by this Agreement As used in this paragraph, "Subrecipient" ixludes 12.
all persons, natural or fictional, affiliated with, controlled by. or under common 12.1.
ovmcrship with, the entity identiHcd as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions

8. PERSONNEL

8.1. The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to
perform the Project. The Subrecipient wamnls that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perfonn such Project and shall be properly licensed 12.2.
and tuthorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.

8.2. The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor,
subgrantec, or other person, firm or corporation with M^iom it is engaged in a
combined effort to perfonn the Project to hire any person who has a contractual 12.3.
relationship with the Stale, or who is a Sute officer or employee, elected or

8.3. appointed.
The Grant Officer shall be the representative of the Sute hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpreution of this Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be rinal. 12.4.

9. DATA-RETENTIDN OF DATA: ACCESS.
9.J. As used in this Agrcemenfthe word "data" shall mean all information and things

developed or obuined during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason this Agreement, including, but not limited to, all studies, reports, files, 13.
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic represenutions,

7.

7.1.

7.2.

Rev. 9/20(5 Page 2 of 6

computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Completkin Date (he Subrecipient shall giaal
to the Sute, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all dau for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sale, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No dau shall be subject to copyright in the United Stales or any uher country by
anyone other than the Sute.
On and after the Effective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
this Agreement, shall be the property of the State, and shall be returned to the
Sute upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
whichever shall first occur.

The Sute, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all dau.
CONDITIONAL NATURE OR AGREEMENT. Notwithstanding anything in
this Agreement to the contrary, all obligations of the Sutc hereunder, including,
without limiuiion, the continuance of payments hcreunder. are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the State
be liable for any payments hcreunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or termination of those fUnds, the State shall
have the right to withhold payment until such funds become available, ifever, and
sh^l have die right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Subrecipient notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT: REMEDIES.

Any one or more of (he following acts or omissions of the Subrectpteni shall
constitute an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default"):

Failure to perform (he Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hcreunder, or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to, the records required hcreunder, or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this AgreemenL
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the Slate may take any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to bie remedied within, in the absence of a greater or lesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event
of Default is not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, effective two (2)
days after giving the Subrecipient notice of termination; and
Give the Subrecipient a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under thb Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwise accrue to the Subrecipient
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines (hat the Subrecipient has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set off against any other obligation the Stale may owe to (he Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason ofany Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached and pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.

TERMINATION.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Grant Officer,
not later than fifteen (15) days after the date of termination, • report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount eartKd, to and ixluding the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by (he Stale shall entitle the
Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the date of (erminaiion.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipient from any and all liability for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subrecipient's breach of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrvy, either the Slate or.
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipient hereunder. the
Subrecipicnl, may terminate (his Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written notice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient. and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Project is to be performed, who exercises any functions or responsibilities in the

Subrecipient Initial(s)

Date: ̂



review or

14.

15.

16.

n.

17.1

17.1.1

17.1.2

approval of the undertaking or carrying out of such Project, shall participate in 17.2.
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corpoiation, partnership, or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
SUBRECIPIENT'S RELATION TO TI IE STATE. In the performance of this
Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgranice 18.
of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither
agents nor employees of the State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any of its
officers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgranices, shall have
authority to bind the Stale nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign. 19.
or otherwise transfer any interest In this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the Stale. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State. 20.
INDEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the Stale, its officers and employees, from and against any and ail
losses suffered by the State, its ofTicen and employees, and any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the Slate, its officers and employees, by or 21.
on behalf of any person, on account of. based on, resulting from, arising out of
(or which may be claimed to arise out oO the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontraoor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of the sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity Is
hereby reserved to the Stale. This covenant shall survive the termination of this 22.
agreement.

NSURANCE AND BOND. 23.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any subcontractor, subgrantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the bcnefrt of the Stale, the following
insurance: 24.

Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for alt
employees ettgaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public liability insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or property damage, in amounts not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence
and $2,000,000 aggregate for bodily injury or death any otK incident, artd
$500,000 for property damage in any one incident; and

The policies described in subparagreph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to. do business in the Slate of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modification of the policy earlier than ten (10) days afler written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
tOer any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
thai Event, or any subsequent Event. No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provisions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of Ae right of die Stale to enforce each and all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other defauh on the part of the Subrecipient
NOTICE. Any notice by a parly hereto to the odier party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by certified mail, postage
prepaid, in a United States Post Office addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT. This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by t^ parties hereto and only alfer approval of
such amendment waiver or discharge by the Oovcmor and Council of iIk State of
New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGRRFMFNT AND TERMS. This Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
binding upon and inures to the benefit of the parties and their respective
successors and assignees. The captions artd contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of this
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be constrtied to confer any such benefit
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the parties, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating hereto.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C hereto
are incorporated as part of this agreement.

Rev. 9/2015 Page 3 of 6 Subrecipient Initial(s)
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OF SERVICES-

1. The Coos County Attorney's Office as Subrecipient shall receive a grant from the New
Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred for services provided to
victims of crime in compliance with the terms, conditions, specifications, and scope of
work as outlined in the Subrecipient's application under state solicitation 2016VOCA2.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for

reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.

Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compl iance. For example, with an award that begins on January 1, thefirst quarterly
report is due on April 15'^ or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
31.

3. Subrecipient are required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses

both state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of
this office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years afler the close of the project.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual application to the DOJ for review and

compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt

shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street
Concord, NH 03301

603-271-1261 orTanya.Pitman@doj.nh.gov.

Page 4 of 6
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EXHIBIT B

-SCHEDULE/TERMS OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ's
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Sub-Recipient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire.

3. The State's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $40,500.00 of the
total Grant Limitation from 7/1/17 dates 6/30/18, with approved expenditure
reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance.

3b.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed. $40,500.00of the
total Grant Limitation from 7/1/18 dates 6/30/19, with approved expenditure
reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance.

3c.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $40,500.00 of the
total Grant Limitation from 7/1/19 dates 6/30/20, with approved expenditure

reports. This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program
performance.

Page 5 of 6 _
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Subrecipients shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the VOCA Federal Grant Program Rule and Special Conditions
as Appendix I which is subject to annual review.

Page 6 of 6
7,0



special Provisions to the State of New Hampshire Grant Agreement

VOCA Funding

1. Compliance by Subrecipient with Laws and Regulations, expressly including the following:

a. Adherence to the following requirements of:

i. Victims of Crime Act (VOCA) 42 U.S. Code Sections Sections 10404(a)(2) and
1404(bXl) and (2), 42 U.S.C. 10603(aX2) and (bXl) and (2) and the Program Rule

implemented in the Federal Register Vol. 81, No.l31, July 8,
'  2016 28CFR Part 94.

httDs://www.federalregister.gov/documents/2016/07/08/2016-16085/victims-

of-crime-act-victim'assistance-program

ii. Nondiscrimination requirements Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as
amended;

iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended;

iv. Subtitle A, Title II of the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA) (1990);

V. Title DC of the Education Amendments of 1972;

vi. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975;

vii. Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations (28 CFR Part 42,
Subparts C, D, E, and G; 28 CFR Parts 35, 38 and 39);

specifically including any applicable requirements regarding written
notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries.

Part 38 of 28 C.F.R., a DOJ regulation, was amended effective May 4,

2016. Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit
specific forms of discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief,

a refiis^ to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a
religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requirements that

pertain to subrecipient organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly
religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to

subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

\  viii. 2 CFR Part 200.300(a) Adherence to the financial and administrative
requirements as set forth in the effective edition of the Office of Justice
Programs "Financial Guide". A copy of these guidelines is available

at http://oip.gOv/financialguide/DOJ/pdfs/20l5 DOJ FinancialGuide.pdf

Page 1 of 12
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b. Pursuant to Executive Order 13513,"Federal Leadership On Reducing Text
Messaging While Driving" 74 Fed. Reg. 51225, the Subrecipient agrees to enforce
policies banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during
the course of performing work funded by this grant, and to establish workplace
safely policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

c. The Hatch Act restricts the political activity of individuals' principally employed by
state or local executive agencies that work in connection with programs financed in
whole or part by federal loans or grants. The Hatch Act prohibits a grant-funded
person from becoming a candidate for public office in a partisan election. For further
information please refer to U.S.C. Title 5 Sections 1501 -1508 and Title 5 of the Code
of Federal Regulations part 151.

2. Reports and Certifications Required: ^

a. Subrecipient will be required to file quarterly performance reports.

b. Subrecipient will be required to file quarterly expenditure reports and to provide
back-up documentation upon request.

c. NH Department of Justice will conduct regular desk reviews and biennial on-site
monitoring vbits with all Subrecipients.

3. The Subrecipient agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, the Immigration and
Naturalization Service Employment Eligibility Form (1-9). This form is to be used by the
Subrecipient to verify that persons employed by the Subrecipient are eligible to work in the
United States.

4. The Subrecipient assures that no federal VOCA funds or match funds have been paid or
will be paid, by or on behalf of the Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of congress in connection
with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal grant or
cooperative agreement. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid
or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative
agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL, "Disclosure
of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions.
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5. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future
years.

6. The Subrecipient assures that information will be collected and maintained, where such
information is voluntarily furnished by claimants on crime victim applications, by race,

national origin, sex, age, and disability. This information will be submitted to the New
Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit.

7. All materials publicizing or resulting from award activities shall contain an acknowledgment
of the awarding agency assistance. An acknowledgment of support shall be made through

use of the following or comparable footnote: "This project was supported by Award No.
2016-VA-GX-0061 awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office of Justice Programs
and administered through the New Hampshire Department of Justice."

8. Any publications (written, visual or sound), whether published through Federal grant funds
or matching funds, shall contain the following statements: "This project was supported by
(2016-VA-GX-0061) awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office of Justice

Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view in this document are those of the
author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice."

9. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former men^ber of the NH

Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on

or be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly

managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express

approval of the NH DOJ.

10. Any renovations to a building over 50 years old must be approved by the State Historical

Preservation Officer and by the federal VOCA Office before any work commences. These

approvals must be coordinated by the NH Department of Justice, Grants Unit.

11. The Subrecipient must utilize volunteers to assist in providing VOCA allowable victim

services unless extenuating circumstances justify the exclusion of volunteers, and a
volunteer waiver is obtained from the NH Department of Justice.

12. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims unless a
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program income waiver is obtained from the NH Department of Justice. If permission to
generate program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding
scale that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant
allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

13. The Subrecipient agrees to assist victims in applying for Victims Compensation benefits.
Such assistance includes; identifying eligible victims; making reasonable efforts to notify
eligible victims of the availability of compensation; making reasonable efforts to explain
the program to victims; offering to assist victims with the application process when it is
reasonable to do so.

14. The Subrecipient understands that VOCA non-allowable personnel activities include:
general administration, prevention, active investigation and prosecution of criminal
activities, research and studies, lobbying, substance abuse treatment services, capital
expenses, compensation for victims of crime and fundraising.

15. The Subrecipient agency must promptly refer to the DOJ OIG any credible evidence that a
principal, employee, agent, contractor, Subrecipient, subcontractor, or other person has
either 1) submitted a false claim for grant funds under the False Claims Act; or 2)

committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest,
bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving grant funds. This condition also applies
to any subrecipients. Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct should be reported to
the

OIG by-

Mail;

Office of the Inspector General

U.S. Department of Justice Investigations Division

950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. Room 4706

Washington, DC 20530

E-mail: oig.hotline@usdoj.gov or hotline fax; (202) 616-9881

additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at www.usdoi.gov/oig.

16. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters
no Subrecipient under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
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subcontract with any funds under this award,,may require any employee or contractor to
sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts,
or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or
abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or
agency authorized to receive such information. The foregoing is not intended, and shall
not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene requirements applicable
to-Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates
to sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department
or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified information.

a. In accepting this award, the recipient—
i. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal

confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or
contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or
purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from
reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

ii. certifies that, if it leams or is notified that it is or has been requiring
its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements

that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict),
reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will
provide prompt written notification to the federal agency making
this award, and will resume (or permit resumption of) such

obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

b. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards
("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or both—

i. it represents that— it has determined that no other entity that
the recipient's application proposes may or will receive

award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"),

procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement

contract) either requires or has required internal

confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or

contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently

restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as

described above; and

ii. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate
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factual basis, to support this representation; and

iii. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient,
contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds under
this award is or has been requiring its employees or

contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit
or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict),
reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to
or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or
permit resumption of) such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

17. The Subrecipient agency understands and agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either
directly or indirectly, in support of any contract or subaward to either the Association of
Community Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN) or its subsidiaries, without the
express prior written approval of the NH Department of Justice and the Office of Justice
Programs.

18. The Subrecipient assures that federal funds received for this grant program will not be used
to supplant existing funds otherwise available for this victim assistance program.

19. Equipment purchased with VOCA f\mds shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the agency
inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost, percentage
of federal VOCA funds, and location. The Subrecipient agrees that the title to any

equipment purchased with VOCA ftmds will revert back to the New Hampshire
Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit, when it is no longer being used for the
VOCA program purposes for which it was acquired.

20. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it be
an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and any
associated management letters to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit.

21. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
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receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability,
a copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice,
Grants Management Unit and to the U,S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights,
Office of Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional
information regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website
at http://www.doi.nh.gov/grants-manaeement/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are
awarded funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office,
and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

22. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may
entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when
necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them
comply with these requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet
at www.leo.gov.

23. The subgrantee, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements
available online (either on the subgrantee's website, or the NH Department of Justice's, or
another publicly available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status
arc considered in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the
extent that such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as
several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial statements.

24. The subgrantee, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statement to NH Department of Justice: 1) affirmatively asserting that the
recipient is a non-profit organization and 2) indicating that the subgrantee has on file and
available upon audit one of the following:
•  A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

A letter from the State of NH stating that the subgrantee is a non-profit
organization operating within the state, or:

•  A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates its
non- profit status

Subgrantees that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should
also have a statement by the parent organization that the subgrantee is a local non-profit
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affiliate.

25. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award). The recipient, and any
subrecipient ("subgrantee") at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements

(including requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to
the trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients ("subgrantees"),
or individuals defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the recipient or of
any subrecipient. The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct
related to trafficking in persons are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitedConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition:
Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons

(including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)), and are
incorporated by reference here.

26. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events. The subgrantee at any tier, must
comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance
(including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal flmds for expenses related to conferences (as that
term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food and/or beverages at such
conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences. Information on the pertinent DOJ
definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ Grants

Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Postaward Requirements" in the "2015 DOJ
Grants Financial Guide").

27. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award

the recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and
effectiveness of activities under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the

manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or
other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the
Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act, and

other applicable laws.

28. OJP training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the subgrantee at any tier - develops or

delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for
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Grantees and Subgrantees, available at
http://oip.gov/funding/oiDtrainin&guidingDrinciples.htm.

29. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY
2016) The subgrantee at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the use
of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions,

including fiom various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act,
2016, are set out at:

http://oip.gov/funding/ExDlore/FY2016-AppropriationsLawRestrictions.htm and are

incorporated by reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of
federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an
appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact their grant manager for
guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of the grant
manager and OJP.

30. Subgrantees vrill authorize representatives of the Office for Victims of Crime and/or the
Office of the Chief Financial Officer access to and the right to examine all records,

books, paper or documents related to the VOCA grant.

31. Certification regarding debarment, suspension ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion

A person may be debarred or suspended for any of the causes listed in 28 CFR §67.305
and §67.405. A person who is debarred or suspended shall be excluded from Federal
financial and non-financial assistance and benefits under Federal programs and activities.

Debarment or suspension of a participant in a program by one Federal agency shall have
government wide effect. For purposes of this certification, "prospective lower tier
participant" shall refer to the subgrantee.

instructions for Certification:

a) By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing
the certification as set out,

b) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or
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debarment.

c) The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person
to whom this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant
learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by
reason of changed circumstances.

d) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal,"
"proposal," and 'Voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in
the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549.

e) The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the
department or agency with which this transaction originated.

f) The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower
tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

g) A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may check the Nonprocurement List.

h) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

i) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant
in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntary excluded from participation in
this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the
department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available
remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
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DEPARTMENT OF

JUSTICE STATE OF NEW

HAMPSHIRE

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY
AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

LOWER TIER COVERED

TRANSACTIONS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order
12549, Debarment and Suspension, 28 CFR §67.510, Participants' responsibilities. The
intent of this Order was to ensure that no subgrantee of federal funds had been restricted
from conducting business with the federal government due to any of the causes listed in 28
CFR §67.305 and 28
CFR §67.405.

By signing this document, you are certifying that neither your agency, nor its
principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in any transaction by any Federal department or
agency.

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to
this certification.

(a • Ot r\l c
Name and Title of Head of Agency

■iture Date

pgr.. ^ ^ P..
Name and Address of Agency
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32. Certification Regarding EEOP Required:
If required, within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for
approval, an acceptable Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28
CFR 42.301 et seq. or a Certification Form to both the NH DOJ and the Office of Civil
Rights, Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, DC
20531. Failure to submit an approved EEOP or Certification is a violation of the Program
Guidelines and Conditions and may result in suspension or termination of funding, until
such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. Additional information on EEOP
requirements may be found here: httD://oiD.gov/about/ocr/faQ eeop.htm

The form and instructions can be found at: http://oip.gov/about/ocr/Ddfs/cert.pdf

33. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed $150,000. The Subrecipient at any tier, must
comply with all applicable requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a
noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the ^
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $150,000). This condition applies to
agreements that - for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements - OJP
considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider a subaward).
The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in
a procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/ExpIore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award
condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract (if contract would exceed $150,000)), and are incorporated by
reference here. ,

I have read and understand all 33 special provisions contained in this document:

kolT
Name and Tit e of Authorized Representative

gnarure Date

Nameand Address of Agency ^
^5 5cU»o\ S^t.. t'Hl

Name and Address of Agency
y
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RESOLUTION

I, Richard Samson, hereby certify that I am duly elected Clerk of the Coos County Board of
Commissioners. I hereby certify the following Is a true copy of a vote taken at a meeting of the Board of
Commissioners, duly called and held on May 17, 2017, at which a quorum of the Commissioners were
present and voting.

VOTED: That John McCormick, Cods County Attorney, is duly authorized to enter into contracts or

agreements on behalf of Cods County with the State of New Hampshire and any of its agencies or
departments and further Is authorized to execute any documents which may In his judgment be desirable
or necessary to affect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force and effect as

of the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. I further certify that it is understood that
the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the person listed above
currently occupies the position indicated and that they have full authority to bind the corporation. To
the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed individual to bind the County in

contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such limitations are expressly stated herein.

Dated: Attest; Q^QI> 4.
Richard San^n, Clerk, Cofis County Commissioners

C:\Usefs\jf'sh\AppOat»\locjlXMicfojoftVWifldowsUemporary interne! File$\Content.Oulloo!i\OMP08NTQ\2017 CenifiCJte ol Aolhpritv!
McComick.dpcx



Prim^x
NH n,ib>ic IU«k Mono9*fn«nt Ejichgrtg« CERTIFICATE OF COVERAGE

The New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange (Primex*) is organized under the New Hampshire Revised Statutes Annotated. Chapter 5-B.
Pooled Risk Management Programs. In accordance with those statutes, its Trust Agreement and bylaws, Primer is authorized to provide pooled risk
managemerH programs established for the benefit of polHicai sutxJMsions in the State of New Hampshire.

Each member of Primex* is entitled to the categories of coverage set forth below. In addition. Primex* may extend the same coverage to non-members.
However, any coverage extended to a non-member is subject to all of the terms, conditions, exclusions, amendments, rules, polides and procedures
that are applicable to the members of Prknex*. Induding but not limited to the final and binding resolution of all claims and coverage disputes before the
Prtnex* Board of Trustees. The Additional Covered Party's per occurrence limit shall be deemed induded in the Member's per occurrence limit, and
therefore shafl reduce the Member's limit of liability as set forth by the Coverage Documents and Declarations. The limit shown may have been reduced
by dakns paid on behalf of the member. General Liability coverage is limited to Coverage A (Personal Injury Liability) and Coverage B (Property
Damage Uability) only. Coverage's C (Public Officials Errors and Omissions), D (Unfair Employment Practices). E (Employee Benefit Uability) and F
(Educator's Legal Liability Claims-Made Coverage) are exduded from this provision of coverage.

The below named enUty is a member In good standing of the New Hampshire Public Risk Management Exchange. The coverage provided may.
however, be revised at any time by the actions of Primex*. As of the date this certificate is issued, the information set out below accurately reflects the
categories of coverage established for the current coverage year.

This Certificate o issued as a matter of information only and confers no rights upon the certificate holder. This certificate does not amend, extend, or
alter the coverage afforded by the coverage categories listed below.

Company Atfoniing Covoraga:

NH Public Risk Management Exchange - Primex'
Bow Brook Place

46 Donovan Street
Concord. NH 03301-2624

PartidpaVng Member

Coos County
PO Box 10

West Stewartstown, NH 03597

UambarNumbar

602

General Liability (Occurrence Form)
Professional Uability (describe)

Q OccurrenceMade□

7/1/2016 7/1/2017 Each Occurrence

General Aggregate
Fire Damage (Any one
fire)
Med Exp (Any one person)

$ 5.000,000
$ 5.000,000

Automobile Liability
Deductible Comp and Coll: $1,000

7/1/2016 7/1/2017

Any auto

Combined Single Umlt
(EKhAccidwX)

Aggregate

$5,000,000

$5,000,000

Workers' Compensation & Employers' Liability 1/1/2017 1/1/2018 Statutory

Each Accident $2,000,000

Disease - Each EfTployM $2,000,000

Disease - Pt«cy

Property (Special Risk Includes Fire arul Theft) 7/1/2016 7/1/2017 Blanket Limit Replacement
Cost (unless othenvlse stated) Deductible:

$1,000

Description: Proof of Primex Member coverage only.

CERTIFICATE HOLDER: I Additional Covered Party Loss Payee Primex' - NH Public Risk Management Exchange

By; TMMf Vamm

Date: 5/3/2017 tdenver(anhprimex.org
Stale of New Hampshire
33 Capitol St
Concord. NH 03301-6397

Please direct inquires to:
Primex' Claims/Coverage Services

603-225-2641 phone
603-226-3633 fax



GRANT AGREEMENT

The State of New Hampshire and the Subrccipicnt hereby
Mutually agree as follows:

^  GENERAL PROVISIONS
I. Identification and Definitions.

1.1. State Agency Name
New Hampshire Department of Justice

1.2. State Agency Address
33 Capitol Street, Concord, NH 03301

1.3. Subrecipient Name
Child Advocacy Center of Rockingham
County

1.4. Subrecipient Address
100 Campus Drive, Suite 11, Portsmouth, NH 03801

1.5 Subrecipient Phone
#603-276-3685

1.6. Account Number

02-20-20-201510-

5021-072-500575

1.7. Completion Date
June 30,2020

1.8. Grant Limitation

5225,000.00

1.9. Grant Officer for State Agency
Kathleen B. Carr

1.10. State Agency Telephone Number
(603) 271-3658

"By signing this form we certify that we have complied with any public meeting requirement for acceptance of this grant,
including if applicable RSA 31;9S-b."

brecipient SiSi1.1

Subrecipie gnat

ent

gnature 1^ .

Tit,,.
1.12. Name& Title ooLSubnubrecipient Signor 1

e 2 If Applicable

1.13. Acknowl

Name & Title of Subrecipient Signor 2 ifApplicable

Pinarii
: State of New Hampshire, County of , on 7 ̂T\

G

1.13.1. Sig
(Seal)

re of Nota ublic or Justice of the Peace 1  i n,&P'RES
=  2018

1.13.2.

1.14. State

e Ck Title of Notary P^ublic\r Justice of the Peace

ency Signature(s)

I0/^

1.15. Name & Title of State Agency Signor(s)

1.16. Approval by Attorney General (Form, Substance and Execution) (if G & C approval required)

^  Assistant Attorney General, On:

1.17. Approval by Governor and Council (if applicable)

By: On: /  /

2.SCOPE OF WORK: In exchange for grant funds provided by the State of New Hampshire, acting through the Agency
identified in block 1.1 (hereinafter referred to as "the State"), the Subrecipient identified in block 1.3 (hereinafter referred to as
"the Subrecipient"), shall perform that work identified and more particularly described in the scope of work attached hereto as
EXHIBIT A (the scope of work being hereinafter referred to as "the Project").
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4.

4.1,

4.2.

5.

5.1.

5.2.

5.3.

5.4.

5.5.

7.

7.1.

7.2.

8.2.

8.3.

9.

9.1.

AREA COVERED- Except «3 otherwise specifically provided for herein, the
Subrecipient shall perform the Project in. and with respect to. the State of New
Hampshire. 9.2.
EFFECTIVE DATE- CQMPLETtON OF PROJECT.

This Agreement, and all obligations of the parties hereunder, shall become
effectrve on the date on the date of approval of this Agreement by the Governor
and Council of the State of New Hampshire if required (block 1.17), or upon 9.3.
signature by the State Agency as shown in block 1.14 ("ihc effective date").
Except as otherwise specificity provided herein, the Project, including all reports 9.4.
required by this Agreement, shall be completed in ITS entirety prior to the date in
bhxk 1.7 (hereinafter referred to as "the Completion Date").
GRANT AMOUNT: LlMfTATION ON AMOUNT: VOUCHERS: PAYMENT.

The Grant Amount is identified and more particularly described in EXHIBfT B,
attached hereto. 9.5.
The manner of. and schedule of payment shall be as set forth in EXHIBIT B.
In accordance with the provisions set forth in EXHIBIT B, and in consideration of 10.
the satisfactory performance of the Project, as determined by the State, and as
limited by subparagraph 5.5 of these general provisions, the State shall pay the
Subrecipient the Grant Amount. The Slate shall withhold from the amount
oiherwbe payable to the Subrecipient under this subparagraph 5.3 those sums
required, or permiocd, to be withheld pursuant to N.H. RSA 80:7 through 7-c
The payment by the State of the Grant amount shall be the only, and the complete
payment to the Subrecipiem for all expenses, of whatever nature, incurred by the
Subrecipient in the performance hereof, and shall be the only, and the complete,
compensation to the Subrecipient for the Project. The State shall have no II.
liabilities to the Subrecipient other than the Grant Amount 11.1.
Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, and notwithstanding
unexpected circumstances, in no event shall the total of all payments authorized, 11. M
or actually made, hereunder exceed the Grant limitation set forth ir) block 1.8 of M.1.2
these gcn^ provisions. 11.1.3
COMPLIANCE BY SUBRECIPIENT WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS. In 11.1.4

connection with the performance of the Project, the Subrecipient shall comply 11.2.
with all statutes, laws regubtions, and orders of federal, state, county, or
municipal authorities which shall impose any obligations or duty upon the 11.2.1
Subrecipient, including the acquisition of any and all necessary permits.
RECORDS and ACCOUNTS.

Between the EITective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion Date
the Subrecipient shall keep detailed accounts of ail expenses incurred in
connection with the Project, including, but not limited to, costs of administration, M.2.2
transportation, insurance, telephone calls, and clerical materials and servkxs.
Such accounts shall be supported by receipts, invoices, bills and other similar
documents.

Between the Effective Date and the date three (3) years after the Completion
Date, at anytime during the Subrecipient's normal business hours, and as often as 11.2.3
the State shall demand, the Subrecipient shall make available to the State all
records pertaining to matters covered by this Agreement. The Subrecipient shall 11.2.4
permit the State to audit, examine, and reproduce such records, and to make
audits of ail contracts, invoices, materials, payrolls, records of personnel, data (as
that term is hereinafter defined), and otJKr information relating to all manors
covered by this Agreement As used in this paragraph. "Subrecipient" includes 12.
all persons, natural or fictional, afTiliatcd with, controlled by, or under common 12.1.
ownership with, the entity identified as the Subrecipient in block 1.3 of these
provisions ,

PERSONNEL.
The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, provide all personnel necessary to
perform the Project The Subrecipient warrants that all personnel engaged in the
Project shall be qualified to perform such Project, and shall be properly licensed 12.2.
end authorized to perform such Project under all applicable laws.
The Subrecipient shall not hire, and it shall not permit any subcontractor,
subgrantec, or other person, firm or corporation with whom it is engaged in a
combined effort to perform the Project to hire any person who has a contractual 12.3.
relationship with the State, or who is a State officer or employee, elected or
appointed.
liiie Grant Officer shiall be the representative of the State hereunder. In the event
of any dispute hereunder, the interpretation of thb Agreement by the Grant
Officer, and his/her decision on any dispute, shall be final. 12.4.
DATA- RETENTION OF DATA- ACCESS

As used in this Agreement, the word "data" shall mean all information and things
developed or obtained during the performance of, or acquired or developed by
reason of, this Agreement, including, but not limited to. all studies, reports, files, 13.
formulae, surveys, maps, charts, sound recordings, video recordings, pictorial
reproductions, drawings, analyses, graphic representations.
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computer programs, computer printouts, notes, letters, memoranda, paper, and
documents, all whether finished or unfinished.
Between the Effective Date and the Completion Date the Subrecipiem shall gram
to the State, or any person designated by it, unrestricted access to all data for
examination, duplication, publication, translation, sate, disposal, or for any other
purpose whatsoever.
No data shall be subject to copyright in the United States or any other country by
anyone other than the State.
On and after the Elective Date all data, and any property which has been
received from the State or purchased with funds provided for that purpose under
thb Agreemem, shall be die property of the State, and shall be returned to the
State upon demand or upon termination of this Agreement for any reason,
wdrichevcr shall fint occur.

The State, and anyone it shall designate, shall have unrestricted authority to
publish, disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, all data.
CQNDITlONAt- NATURE OR AGREEMENT Notwithstanding anything in
(hb Agreemem (o the contrary, ell obliptions of the Sute hereunder. including,
without limitation, the continuance of payments hereunder, are contingent upon
the availability or continued appropriation of funds, and in no event shall the Slate
be liable for any payments hereunder in excess of such available or appropriated
funds. In the event of a reduction or tcrmittatkm of those futtds, the State shall

have the right to withht^d payment until such funds become available, if ever, and
shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately upon giving the
Subrecipiem notice of such termination.
EVENT OF DEFAULT- REMEDIES.

Any one or more of the following acts or ombsions of the Subrecipient shall
constitute an event of default hereunder (hereinafter referred to as "Events of
Default");
Failure to perform the Project satisfactorily or on schedule; or
Failure to submit any report required hereunder; or
Failure to maintain, or permit access to. the records required hereunder, or
Failure to perform any of the other covenants and conditions of this Agreemem.
Upon the occurrence of any Event of Default, the State may lake any one, or
more, or all, of the following actions:
Give the Subrecipient a wrinen notice specifying the Event of Default and
requiring it to be remedied within, in the absence of a greater or tesser
specification of time, thirty (30) days from the date of the notice; and if the Event
of Default b not timely remedied, terminate this Agreement, erfeciive two (2)
days after giving the Subrecipiem notice of termination; and
Give the Subrecipiem a written notice specifying the Event of Default and
suspending all payments to be made under thb Agreement and ordering that the
portion of the Grant Amount which would otherwbe accrw to the Std>recipicni
during the period from the date of such notice until such time as the State
determines that the Subrecipiem has cured the Event of Default shall never be
paid to the Subrecipient; and
Set off against any other obligation the State may owe to the Subrecipient any
damages the State suffers by reason of any Event of Default; and
Treat the agreement as breached ai>d pursue any of its remedies at law or in
equity, or both.

In the event of any early termination of this Agreement for any reason other than
the completion of the Project, the Subrecipient shall deliver to the Gram Officer,
not teter than fifteen (15) days afler the date of termination, a report (hereinafter
referred to as the "Termination Report") describing in detail all Project Work
performed, and the Grant Amount earned, to and including the date of
termination.

In the event of Termination under paragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provbions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the Stale shall entitle the
Subrecipient to receive that portion of the Grant amount earned to and including
the dale of termination.

In the event of Termination under poragraphs 10 or 12.4 of these general
provisions, the approval of such a Termination Report by the State shall in no
event relieve the Subrecipiem from any and all Ibbility for damages sustained or
incurred by the State as a result of the Subreciptem's bread) of its obligations
hereunder.

Notwithstanding anything in this Agreement to the contrary, either (he State or.
except where notice default has been given to the Subrecipiem hereunder, the
Subrecipient, may terminate this Agreement without cause upon thirty (30) days
written rtotice.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST. No officer, member of employee of the
Subrecipient, and no representative, officer or employee of the State of New
Hampshire or of the governing body of the locality or localities in which the
Pfojea is to be performed!, who exercbes any funcUonj-or-K^ponsibilities in the
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14.

15.

16.

17.

17.1

17.1.1

17,1.2

approval of ihe undertaking or canying out of such Project, shall participate in
any decision relating to this Agreement which affects his or her personal interest
or the interest of any corporation, partrtership. or association in which he or she
is directly or indirectly interested, nor shall he or she have any personal or
pecuniary interest, direct or indirect, in this Agreement or the proceeds thereof.
SlJBREriPrpMT'e bfi atiON to THP state, in the pwformancc of this

Agreement the Subrecipient, its employees, and any subcontractor or subgrantee
of the Subrecipient are in all respects independent contractors, and are neither
agents nor employees of dte State. Neither the Subrecipient nor any of its
ofrtcers, employees, agents, members, subcontractors or subgrantees. shall have
authority to bind the State nor are they entitled to any of the benefits, workmen's
compensation or emoluments provided by the State to its employees.
ASSIGNMENT AND SUBCONTRACTS. The Subrecipient shall not assign,

or otherwise tnmsfer any interest in this Agreement without the prior written
consent of the State. None of the Project Work shall be subcontracted or
subgranted by the Subrecipient other than as set forth in Exhibit A without the
prior written consent of the State.
INPEMNIFICATION. The Subrecipient shall defend, indemnify and hold
harmless the State, its officers and employees, from and against any and ail

losses suffered by the State, its oflicers and employees, end any and all claims,
liabilities or penalties asserted against the State, its oflicers and employees, by or
on behalf of any person, on account of, based on, resulting from, arising out of
(or which may be claimed to arise out of) the acts or omissions of the
Subrecipient or subcontractor, or subgrantee or other agent of the Subrecipient.
Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein contained shall be deemed to
constitute a waiver of (he sovereign immunity of the State, which immunity is
hereby reserved to the State. This covenant shall survive the termination of this
agreemenL

INSURANCE AND BOND.

The Subrecipient shall, at its own expense, obtain and maintain in force, or shall
require any stdicontroctor, st^rantee or assignee performing Project work to
obtain and maintain in force, both for the benefit of the State, the following
insurance;

Statutory workmen's compensation and employees liability insurance for all
empSoym engaged in the performance of the Project, and
Comprehensive public Jtabiliiy insurance against all claims of bodily injuries,
death or properly damage, in amounts not less than SI.OOO.CKX) per occurreiKe
and S2,000.(X)0 aggrepte for bodily injury or death any one incident, and
$5(X).0(X) for property damage in any one incident; and

17.2.

18.

19.

20.

21.

22.

23.

24.

The policies described in subparagraph 17.1 of this paragraph shall be the
standard form employed in the State of New Hampshire, issued by underwriters
acceptable to the State, and authorized to do business in the Stale of New
Hampshire. Each policy shall contain a clause prohibiting cancellation or
modificetion of the policy earlier than ten (10) days after written notice thereof
has been received by the State.
WAIVER OF BREACH. No failure by the State to enforce any provisions hereof
after any Event of Default shall be deemed a waiver of its rights with regard to
that Event, or any subsequent Event No express waiver of any Event of Default
shall be deemed a waiver of any provbions hereof. No such failure of waiver
shall be deemed a waiver of the right of the State to enforce each end all of the
provisions hereof upon any further or other default on the part of the Subrecipient.
NOTICE. Any notice by a party hereto to the other party shall be deemed to have
been duly delivered or given at the time of mailing by ceitifled mail, postage
prepaid, in a Untied States Post OfTice addressed to the parties at the addresses
first above given.
AMENDMENT This Agreement may be amended, waived or discharged only
by an instrument in writing signed by the parties hereto and only aDer approval of
such amendment, waiver or discharge by the Governor and Council of the State of
New Hampshire, if required or by the signing State Agency.
CONSTRUCTION OF AGREEMENT AND TERMS. Thb Agreement shall be
construed in accordance with the law of the State of New Hampshire, and is
bindii^ upon and inures to (he benefit of the panics and Uwir respeaive
successors and assignees. The captions and contents of the "subject" blank are
used only as a matter of convenience, and are not to be considered a part of thb
Agreement or to be used in determining the intend of the parties hereto.
THIRD PARTIES. The parties hereto do not intend to benefit any third parties
and this Agreement shall not be construed to confer any such benefit.
ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, which may be executed in a number
of counterparts, each of which shall be deemed an original, constitutes the entire
agreement and understanding between the panics, and supersedes all prior
agreements and understandings relating heiw.
SPECIAL PROVISIONS. The additional provisions set forth in Exhibit C hereto
are incorporated as pert of this agreement

.  /
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EXHIBIT A

-SCOPE OFSERVICES-

1. The Rockingham County Child Advocacy Center as Subrecipient shall receive a grant
from the New Hampshire Department of Justice (DOJ) for expenses incurred for services
provided to victims of crime in compliance with the terms, conditions, specifications, and
scope of work as outlined in the Subrecipient's application under state solicitation
20I6VOCA2.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed by the DOJ based on budgeted expenditures
described in Exhibit B. The Subrecipient shall submit incurred expenses for
reimbursement on the state approved expenditure reporting form as provided.
Expenditure reports shall be submitted on a quarterly basis, within fifteen (15) days
following the end of the current quarterly activities. Expenditure reports submitted later
than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter will be considered late and out of
compliance. For example, with an award that begins on January I, the first quarterly
report is due on April 15'^ or 15 days after the close ofthe first quarter ending on March
51.

3. Subrecipient are required to maintain supporting documentation for all grant expenses ,
both state funds and match if provided and to produce those documents upon request of
this office or any other state or federal audit authority. Grant project supporting
documentation should be maintained for at least 5 years after the close of the project.

4. Subrecipient shall be required to submit an annual application to the DOJ for review and
compliance.

5. Subrecipient shall be subject to periodic desk audits and program reviews by DOJ. Such
desk audits and program reviews shall be scheduled with Subrecipient and every attempt
shall be made by Subrecipient to accommodate the schedule.

6. All correspondence and submittals shall be directed to:
NH Department of Justice

Grants Management Unit

33 Capitol Street

Concord, NH 03301

603-271-1261 orTanya.Pitman@doj.nh.gov.



EXHIBIT B

-SCHEDULEyTERMS OF PAYMENT-

1. The Subrecipient shall receive reimbursement in exchange for approved expenditure
reports as described in EXHIBIT A.

2. The Subrecipient shall be reimbursed within thirty (30) days following the DOJ*s
approval of expenditures. Said payment shall be made to the Sub-Recipient's account
receivables address per the Financial System of the State of New Hampshire,

3. The Stale's obligation to compensate the Subrecipient under this Agreement shall not
exceed the price limitation set forth in form P-37 section 1.8.

3a.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $75,000 of the
total Grant Limitation from 7/1/17 to 6/30/18, with approved expenditure reports.
This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3b.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $75,000 of the
total Grant Limitation from 7/1/18 to 6/30/19, with approved expenditure reports.
This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

3c.The Subrecipient shall be awarded an amount not to exceed $75,000 of the
total Grant Limitation from 7/1/19 to 6/30/20, with approved expenditure reports.
This shall be contingent on continued federal funding and program performance.

A\ ^
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EXHIBIT C

-SPECIAL PROVISIONS-

Subrecipients shall also be compliant at all times with the terms, conditions and
specifications detailed in the VOCA Federal Grant Program Rule and Special Conditions
as Appendix 1 which is subject to annual review.
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Appendix 1

Special Conditions to the State of New Hampshire Grant Agreement

VOCA Funding

I. Compliance by Subrecipient with Laws and Regulations, expressly Including the following:

a. Adherence to the following requirements of:

i. Victims of Crime Act (VCX;A) 42 U.S. Code Sections Sections 10404(aX2) and
1404(b)( 1) and (2), 42 U.S.C. 10603(aX2) and (bX 1) and (2) and the Program Rule

implemented in the Federal Register Vol. 81, No.l31, July 8,
2016 28CFR Part

94. https://www.federalregister.gOv/documents/20l6/07/08/20l6-
16Q85/victims-of-crime-act-victim-assistance-program

ii. Nondiscrimlnation requirements Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, as
amended;

iii. Section 504 of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973, as amended;

iv. Subtitle A, Title II of the Americans With Disabilities Act (ADA) (1990);
V. Title DC of the Education Amendments of 1972;

vi. The Age Discrimination Act of 1975;
" vii. Department of Justice Non-Discrimination Regulations (28 CFR Part 42,

Subparts C, D, E, and G; 28 CFR Parts 35, 38 and 39);

specifically including any applicable requirements regarding written
notice to program beneficiaries and prospective program beneficiaries.
Part 38 of 28 C.F.R., a DOJ regulation, was amended effective May 4,
2016. Among other things, 28 C.F.R. Part 38 includes rules that prohibit
specific forms of discrimination on the basis of religion, a religious belief,
a refusal to hold a religious belief, or refusal to attend or participate in a
religious practice. Part 38 also sets out rules and requiremenU that
pertain to subrecipient organizations that engage in or conduct explicitly
religious activities, as well as rules and requirements that pertain to
subrecipients that are faith-based or religious organizations.

viii. 2 CFR Part 200.300(a) Adherence to the financial and administrative
requirements as set forth in the effective edition of the Office of Justice
Programs "Financial Guide". A copy of these guidelines is available

at http://oip.gOv/financialguide/DOJ/txlfs/2015 DOJ FinancialGuide.txIf

Page 1 of 12
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b. Pursuant to Executive Order 13513,"Federal Leadership On Reducing Text

Messaging While Driving" 74 Fed. Reg. 51225, the Subrecipient agrees to enforce
policies banning employees from text messaging while driving any vehicle during
the course of performing work funded by this grant, and to establish workplace
safety policies and conduct education, awareness, and other outreach to decrease
crashes caused by distracted drivers.

c. The Hatch Act restricts the political activity of individuals principally employed by
state or local executive agencies that work in connection with programs financed in
whole or part by federal loans or grants. The Hatch Act prohibits a grant-funded
person from becoming a candidate for public office in a partisan election. For further
information please refer to U.S.C. Title 5 Sections 1501-1508 and Title 5 of the Code
of Federal Regulations part 151.

2. Reports and Certifications Required:

a. Subrecipient will be required to file quarterly performance reports.

b. Subrecipient will be required to file quarterly expenditure reports and to provide
back-up documentation upon request.

c. NH Department of Justice will conduct regular desk reviews and biennial on-site
monitoring visits with all Subrecipients.

3. The Subrecipient agrees to complete and keep on file, as appropriate, the Immigration and
Naturalization Service Employment Eligibility Form (1-9). This form is to be used by the
Subrecipient to verify that persons employed by the Subrecipient are eligible to work in the
United States.

4. The Subrecipient assures that no federal VOCA funds or match funds have been paid or
will be paid, by or on behalf of the Subrecipient, to any person for influencing or
attempting to influence an officer or employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an
officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of congress in connection
with the making of any Federal grant, the entering into of any cooperative agreement, and
the extension, continuation, renewal, amendment, or modification of any Federal grant or
cooperative agreement. If any funds other than Federal appropriated funds have been paid
or will be paid to any person for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or
employee of any agency, a Member of Congress, an officer or employee of Congress, or an
employee of a Member of Congress in connection with this Federal grant or cooperative
agreement, the Subrecipient shall complete and submit Standard Form - LLL,' Disclosure
of Lobbying Activities," in accordance with its instructions.
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5. The Subrecipient understands that grants are funded for the grant award period noted on the
grant award document. No guarantee is given or implied of subsequent funding in future
years.

6. The Subrecipient assures that information will be collected and maintained, where such
information is voluntarily furnished by claimants on crime victim applications, by race,
national origin, sex, age, and disability. This information will be submitted to the New
Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit.

7. All materials publicizing or resulting from award activities shall contain an acknowledgment
of the awarding agency assistance. An acknowledgment of support shall be made through
use of the following or comparable footnote; "This project was supported by Award No.
2015-VA-GX-0007 awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office of Justice Programs
and administered through the New Hampshire Department of Justice."

8. Any publications (written, visual or sound), whether published through Federal grant funds
or matching funds, shall contain the following statements: "This project was supported by
(2015-VA-GX-0007) awarded by the Office for Victims of Crime, Office of Justice
Programs, U.S. Department of Justice. Points of view in this document are those of the
author and do not necessarily represent the official position or policies of the U.S.
Department of Justice."

9. The Subrecipient agency agrees that, should they employ a former member of the NH
Department of Justice (NHDOJ), that employee or their relative shall not perform work on
or be billed to any federal or state subgrant or monetary award that the employee directly
managed or supervised while at the NHDOJ for the life of the subgrant without the express
approval of the NH DOJ.

{

10. Any renovations to a building over 50 years old must be approved by the State Historical
Preservation Officer and by the federal VOCA Office before any work commences. These
approvals must be coordinated by the NH Department of Justice, Grants Unit.

11. The Subrecipient must utilize volunteers to assist in providing VOCA allowable victim
services unless extenuating circumstances justify the exclusion of volunteers, and a
volunteer waiver is obtained from the NH Department of Justice.

12. The Subrecipient agrees that all services will be provided at no charge to victims unless a
Page 3 of 12

Victims of Crime Act-VOCA Assistance

Subrecipient P-37



program income waiver is obtained from the NH Department of Justice. If permission to
generate program income is granted, the Subrecipient agrees that there must be a sliding
scale that starts at zero, and that all program income will be totally expended on grant
allowable activities by the end of the funding cycle.

\

13. The Subrecipient agrees to assist victims in applying for Victims Compensation benefits.
Such assistance includes: identifying eligible victims; making reasonable efforts to notify
eligible victims of the availability of compensation; making reasonable efforts to explain
the program to victims; offering to assist victims with the application process when it is
reasonable to do so.

14. The Subrecipient understands that VOCA non-allowable personnel activities include:
general administration, prevention, active investigation and prosecution of criminal
activities, research and studies, lobbying, substance abuse treatment services, capital
expenses, compensation for victims of crime and fundraising.

15. The Subrecipient agency must promptly refer to the DOJ OIG any credible evidence that a
principal, employee, agent, contractor, subrecipient, subcontractor, or other person has
either I) submitted a false claim for grant funds under the False Claims Act; or 2)
committed a criminal or civil violation of laws pertaining to fraud, conflict of interest,
bribery, gratuity, or similar misconduct involving grant funds. This condition also applies
to any subrecipients. Potential fraud, waste, abuse, or misconduct should be reported to
the

OIG by-

Mail:

Office of the Inspector General

U.S. Department of Justice Investigations Division
950 Pennsylvania Avenue, N.W. Room 4706
Washington, DC 20530

E-mail: oig.hotline@usdoj.gov or hotline fax: (202) 616-9881
additional information is available from the DOJ OIG website at www.usdoi.eov/oifi.

16. Restrictions and certifications regarding non-disclosure agreements and related matters
no Subrecipient under this award, or entity that receives a procurement contract or
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subcontract with any funds under this award, may require any employee or contractor to

sign an internal confidentiality agreement or statement that prohibits or otherwise restricts,
or purports to prohibit or restrict, the reporting (in accordance with law) of waste, fraud, or

abuse to an investigative or law enforcement representative of a federal department or

agency authorized to receive such information. The foregoing is not intended, and shall
not be understood by the agency making this award, to contravene requirements applicable
to Standard Form 312 (which relates to classified information), Form 4414 (which relates

to sensitive compartmented information), or any other form issued by a federal department
or agency governing the nondisclosure of classified information.

a. In accepting this award, the recipient—

i. represents that it neither requires nor has required internal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or
contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently restrict (or
purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or contractors from
reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as described above; and

ii. certifies that, if it learns or is notified that it is or has been requiring
its employees or contractors to execute agreements or statements

that prohibit or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict),
reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds, will
provide prompt written notification to the federal agency making
this award, and will resume (or permit resumption oO such
obligations only if expressly authorized to do so by that agency.

b. If the recipient does or is authorized under this award to make subawards
("subgrants"), procurement contracts, or both—

i. it represents that— it has determined that no other entity that
the recipient's application proposes may or will receive
award funds (whether through a subaward ("subgrant"),
procurement contract, or subcontract under a procurement
contract) either requires or has required internal
confidentiality agreements or statements from employees or
contractors that currently prohibit or otherwise currently
restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict) employees or
contractors from reporting waste, fraud, or abuse as

^  described above; and

ii. it has made appropriate inquiry, or otherwise has an adequate
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factual basis, to support this representation; and

iii. it certifies that, if it learns or is notified that any subrecipient,

contractor, or subcontractor entity that receives funds under

this award is or has been requiring its employees or

contractors to execute agreements or statements that prohibit
or otherwise restrict (or purport to prohibit or restrict),
reporting of waste, fraud, or abuse as described above, it will
immediately stop any further obligations of award funds to

or by that entity, will provide prompt written notification to
the federal agency making this award, and will resume (or
permit resumption oQ such obligations only if expressly
authorized to do so by that agency.

17. The Subrecipient agency understands and agrees that it cannot use any federal funds, either
directly or indirectly, in support of any contract or subaward to either the Association of
Community Organizations for Reform Now (ACORN) or its subsidiaries, without the
express prior written approval of the NH Department of Justice and the Office of Justice
Programs.

18. The Subrecipient assures that federal funds received for this grant program will not be used
to supplant existing funds otherwise available for this victim assistance program.

19. Equipment purchased with VOCA funds shall be listed by the Subrecipient on the agency
inventory. The inventory must include the item description, serial number, cost, percentage
of federal VOCA funds, and location. The Subrecipient agrees that the title to any
equipment purchased with VOCA funds will revert back to the New Hampshire
Department of Justice, Grants Management Unit, when it is no longer being used for the
VOCA program purposes for which it was acquired.

20. The Subrecipient agrees that if a financial audit of the agency is performed, whether it be
an audit under 2 CFR or not, the Subrecipient agrees to provide a copy of the audit and any
associated management letters to the New Hampshire Department of Justice, Grants
Management Unit.

21. The Subrecipient assures that in the event a Federal or State court or Federal or State
administrative agency makes a finding of discrimination within the three years prior to the
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receipt of the federal financial assistance and after a due process hearing against the
Subrecipient on the grounds of race, color, religion, national origin, sex, age, or disability,
a copy of the finding will be submitted to the New Hampshire Department of Justice,

^  Grants Management Unit and to the U.S. Department of Justice, Office for Civil Rights,
Office of Justice Programs, 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, D.C. 20531. For additional
information regarding your obligations under civil rights please reference the state website
at http://www.doi.nh.eov/grants-management/civil-rights.htm and understand if you are
awarded funding from this office, civil rights compliance will be monitored by this office,
and the Office for Civil Rights, Office of Justice Programs, U.S. Department of Justice.

22. The Subrecipient must certify that Limited English Proficiency persons have meaningful
access to any services provided by this program. National origin discrimination includes
discrimination on the basis of limited English proficiency (LEP). Meaningful access may
entail providing language assistance services, including oral and written translation when
necessary. The U.S. Department of Justice has issued guidance for grantees to help them
comply with these requirements. The guidance document can be accessed on the Internet
at wv/w.lep.gov.

23. The subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, agrees to make its financial statements
available online (either on the subre'cipient's website, or the NH Department of Justice's,
or another publicly available website). Organizations that have Federal 501 (c) 3 tax status
are considered in compliance with this requirement, with no further action needed, to the
extent that such organization files IRS Form 990 or similar tax document (e.g., 990-EZ), as
several sources already provide searchable online databases of such financial statements.

24. The Subrecipient, if a non-profit organization, must certify their non-profit status by
submitting a statement to NH Department of Justice: 1) affirmatively asserting that the
recipient is a non-profit organization and 2) indicating that the Subrecipient has on file and
available upon audit one of the following:
•  A copy of the organization's 501 (c) 3 designation letter, or:

A letter from the State of NH stating that the Subrecipient is a non-profit
organization operating within the state, or:
A copy of the sub-grantee's state certificate of incorporation that substantiates its
non- profit status

Subrecipient that are local non-profit affiliates of state or national non-profits should
also have a statement by the parent organization that the Subrecipient is a local non-profit
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affiliate.

25. Requirements pertaining to prohibited conduct related to trafficking in persons (including
reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award). The recipient, and any
subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable requirements (including
requirements to report allegations) pertaining to prohibited conduct related to the
trafficking of persons, whether on the part of recipients, subrecipients or individuals
defined (for purposes of this condition) as "employees" of the recipient or of any
subrecipient. The details of the recipient's obligations related to prohibited conduct related
to trafficking in persons are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/ProhibitcdConduct-Trafficking.htm (Award condition:

Prohibited conduct by recipients and subrecipients related to trafficking in persons
(including reporting requirements and OJP authority to terminate award)), and are
incorporated by reference here.

26. Compliance with applicable rules regarding approval, planning, and reporting of
conferences, meetings, trainings, and other events. The subrecipient at any tier, must
comply with all applicable laws, regulations, policies, and official DOJ guidance
(including specific cost limits, prior approval and reporting requirements, where
applicable) governing the use of federal funds for expenses related to conferences (as that
term is defined by DOJ), including the provision of food and/or beverages at such
conferences, and costs of attendance at such conferences. Information on the pertinent DOJ
definition of conferences and the rules applicable to this award appears in the DOJ Grants
Financial Guide (currently, as section 3.10 of "Post award Requirements" in the "2015
DOJ Grants Financial Guide").

27. Requirement for data on performance and effectiveness under the award
the recipient must collect and maintain data that measure the performance and
effectiveness of activities under this award. The data must be provided to OJP in the
manner (including within the timeframes) specified by OJP in the program solicitation or
other applicable written guidance. Data collection supports compliance with the
Government Performance and Results Act (GPRA) and the GPRA Modernization Act, and
other applicable laws.

28. OJP Training Guiding Principles

Any training or training materials that the Subrecipient at any tier — develops or
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delivers with OJP award funds must adhere to the OJP Training Guiding Principles for

Grantees and Subgrantees, available

at http://oiD.gov/fundin^oiptrainingguidingprinciples.htm.

29. Compliance with general appropriations-law restrictions on the use of federal funds (FY
2016) The Subrecipient at any tier, must comply with all applicable restrictions on the
use of federal funds set out in federal appropriations statutes. Pertinent restrictions,
including from various "general provisions" in the Consolidated Appropriations Act,
2016, are set out at:

http://oip.gov/funding/Explorc/Fy20i6-AppropriationsLawRestrictions.htm and are
incorporated by reference here. Should a question arise as to whether a particular use of
federal funds by a recipient (or a subrecipient) would or might fall within the scope of an
appropriations-law restriction, the recipient is to contact their grant manager for
guidance, and may not proceed without the express prior written approval of the grant
manager and OJP.

30. Subrecipient will authorize representatives of the Office for Victims of Crime and/or the
Office of the Chief Financial Officer access to and the right to examine all records,
books, paper or documents related to the VOCA grant.

31. Certification regarding dcbarment, suspension ineligibility, and voluntary exclusion
A person may be debarred or suspended for any of the causes listed in 28 CFR §67.305
and §67.405. A person who is debarred or suspended shall be excluded from Federal
financial and non-financial assistance and benefits under Federal programs and activities.
Debarment or suspension of a participant in a program by one Federal agency shall have
government wide effect. For purposes of this certification, "prospective lower tier
participant" shall refer to the Subrecipient.

Instructions for Certification:

a) By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant is providing
the certification as set out.

b) The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was
placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective
lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other
remedies available to the Federal Government, the department or agency with which this
transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and/or

Page 9 of 12

Victims of Crime Act-VOCA Assistance

Subrecipient P-37



debarment.

c) The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person
to whom this proposal is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant
learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or has become erroneous by
reason of changed circumstances.

d) The terms "covered transaction," "debarred," "suspended," "ineligible," "lower tier covered
transaction," "participant," "person," "primary covered transaction," "principal,"
"proposal," and "voluntarily excluded," as used in this clause, have the meanings set out in
the Definitions and Coverage sections of rules implementing Executive Order 12549.

e) The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this proposal that, should the
proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower
tier covered transaction with a person who is debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the
department or agency with which this transaction originated.

0 The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will
include the clause titled "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and
Voluntary Exclusion-Lower Tier Covered Transactions," without modification, in all lower
tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.

g) A participant in a covered transaction niay rely upon a certification of a prospective
participant in lower tier covered transaction that it is not debarred, suspended, ineligible, or
voluntarily excluded from the covered transaction, unless it knows that the certification is
erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the
eligibility of its principals. Each participant may check the Nonprocurement List.

h) Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system
of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The
knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally
possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.

i) Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant
in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a
person who is suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntary excluded from participation in
this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal Government, the
department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available
remedies, including suspension and/or debarment.
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DEPARTMENT OF

JUSTICE STATE OF NEW

HAMPSHIRE

CERTIFICATION REGARDING DEBARMENT, SUSPENSION, INELIGIBILITY
AND VOLUNTARY EXCLUSION

LOWER TIER COVERED
TRANSACTIONS

This certification is required by the regulations implementing Executive Order
12549, Debarmentand Suspension, 28 CFR §67.510, Participants' responsibilities. The
intent of this Order was to ensure that no subgrantee of federal funds had been restricted
from conducting business with the federal government due to any of the causes listed in 28
CFR §67.305 and 28
CFR §67.405.

By signing this document, you are certifying that neither your agency, nor its
principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible,
or voluntarily excluded from participation in any transaction by any Federal department or
agency.

If you are unable to sign this certification, you must attach an explanation to
this certification.

AiM./ZQQAJ
Name and Title of Head of Agency

/\ ]Ja
Signature

APUA )(IJ(/dccuC(/ ir/e' ̂
Name and Address of Agency
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32. Certification Regarding EEOP Required:
If required, within 30 days from the date of the award, the Subrecipient will submit for
approval, an acceptable Equal Employment Opportunity Plan (EEOP) as required by 28
CFR 42.301 et seq. or a Certification Form to both the NH DOJ and the Office of Civil
Rights, Office of Justice Programs, US DOJ at 810 7th Street, NW, Washington, DC
20531. Failure to submit an approved EEOP or Certification is a violation of the Program
Guidelines and Conditions and may result in suspension or termination of funding, until
such time as the Subrecipient is in compliance. Additional information on EEOP
requirements may be found here; http://oiD.eov/about/ocr/faq eeop.htm

The form and instructions can be found at: http://oip.eov/about/ocr/pdfs/cert.pdf

33. Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in any
procurement contract that would exceed $150,000. The Subrecipient at any tier, must
comply with all applicable requirements to obtain specific advance approval to use a
noncompetitive approach in any procurement contract that would exceed the
Simplified Acquisition Threshold (currently, $150,000). This condition applies to
agreements that ~ for purposes of federal grants administrative requirements - OJP
considers a procurement "contract" (and therefore does not consider a subaward).
The details of the requirement for advance approval to use a noncompetitive approach in
a procurement contract under an OJP award are posted on the OJP web site at
http://ojp.gov/funding/Explore/NoncompetitiveProcurement.htm (Award
condition: Specific post-award approval required to use a noncompetitive approach in a
procurement contract (if contract would exceed $ 150,000)), and are incorporated by
reference here.

/ have read and understand all 33 special provisions contained in this document:

Name and Title of /^thorized Representative

Slenature /- Date

(tf/, a///!
Name and Address of Agency
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state of New Hampshire

Department of State

CERTIFICATE

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby certify that CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER

OF ROCKINGHAM COLINTY, INC. is a New Hampshire Nonprofit Corporation registered to transact business in New

Hampshire on July 12, 1999. 1 further certify that all fees and documents required by the Secretary of State's office have been

received and is in good standing as far as this office Is concerned.

Business ID: 320619

s
o

A
%

J*

-ci

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF.

I hereto set my hand and cause to be affixed

the Seal of the Stale of New Hampshire,

this 27th day of April A.D. 2017.

William M. Gardner

Secretary of State



0)|1flCHILD 11?J Certificate of Authority for

The Child Advocacy Center ofRockinaham County

The safe ploce for kids.

I. Brad Russ, hereby certify that I am duly elected Board Chair of the Child Advocacy

Center ofRockingham County. I hereby certify the following is a true copy of an electronic vote

taken in April of 2016 at which a quorum of the Directors voted.

VOTED: That Brad Russ is duly authorized to enter into contracts and agreements on

behalf of C/ie Child Advocacy Center ofRockingham County with the state of New Hampshire

and any of its agencies or departments and further is authorized to execute any documents

which may be in his judgment be desirable or necessary to effect the purpose of this vote.

I hereby certify that said vote has not been amended or repealed and remains in full force

and effect as the date of the contract to which this certificate is attached. I further certify that it is

understood that the State of New Hampshire will rely on this certificate as evidence that the

person listed above currently occupy the position indicated and that they have full authority to

bind the corporation. To the extent that there are any limits on the authority of any listed

individual to bind the corporation in contracts with the State of New Hampshire, all such

limitations are expressly stated herein.

DATED: H UJ n ATTEST:
I  ' (Name & wle)



Client#: 36630 CHIAD1

ACORD^ CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE
DATE (UM/DOmrVY)

12/01/2016

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S). AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certlflcate holder la an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the pollcy(les) muet t)e endorsed. If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, Bubject to
the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require en endorsement A statement on this certificate does not confer rights to the
csrtiflcatB holder In lieu of euch endorsemontie).

PROOUCEA

People's United Ins. Agency NH
1656 Lafayette Rd.
2nd Ft.

Portsmouth, NH 03601

SiiS*" Laurie MclnUre
^4. E«,: 603-427-7627 K)£.Ma.:

laurle.mcintirei^peopiee.com

mSURERlS) AFFOROINO COVERAGE KAICf

INSURER A Ptiiladetphla Indemnity Ineuranc 18068

INSURED

Seacoast Child Advocacy Center Inc

100 Campue Drive, Suite #11
Portsmouth, NH 03801

INSURER a • Zurich American Ineurance Co. 18636

INSURER c • Great American Insurance Compan 18891

INSURER 0:

INSURER E:

INSURER F;

THIS IS TO CERTIFY THAT THE POLICIES OF INSURANCE LISTED BELOW HAVE BEEN ISSUED TO THE INSURED NAMED ABOVE FOR THE POLICY PERIW
INDICATED. NOTWITHSTANDING ANY REQUIREMENT. TERM OR CONDITION OF ANY CONTRACTOR OTHER ^JH^eSiS
CERTIFICATE MAY BE ISSUED OR MAY PERTAIN, THE INSURANCE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES DESCRIBED HEREIN IS SUBJECT TO ALL THE TERMS.
FXrilJSIONS AND CONDITIONS OF SUCH POLICIES. LIMITS SHOWN MAY HAVE BEEN REDUCED BY PAID CLA MS.

rrPE OF INSURANCE
ADOL

IHSB.

COUHEROAL OCNERA L UASttJTY

CLAIMSMAOE Q OCCUR

OENl AGOREOATE UUIT APPLIES PER:

POUCY CH JOT ED LOC
OTHER:

AUTOMOBILE UABIUTY

ANY AUTO

ALL OWNED
AUTOS

HIRED AUTOS

UUBREUAUAB

EXCESS UAB

DED

SCHEDULED
AUTOS
NON-OWMED
AUTOS

OCCUR

CLAIMSJilAOE

RETENTION I

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS'UAfiUTY fm

(hUnSatory In NH)
H VM, dMCfIb* undar
OESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS bMow

DIr & Officers

Empi Practices

SUBR
WVD

HfA

POUCY NUMBER

PHPK1562687 10/18/2016

WC02125880

EPP1188249

10/18/2018

11/14/2018

10/18/2017

10/16/2017

11/14/2017

UMITS

EACH OCCURRENCE

MED EXP (Any ona pwaon)

PERSONAL A ADV INJURY

GENERAL AGGREGATE

PRODUCTS • COMPlOP AGO

CQmBINEO SINGLE LIMIT
(Ea >cd<Mnl>

BOOLY INJURY (Par panon)

BOOLY INJURY (Par acsMarK)

prQperty damage
tPar acetflanll

EACH OCCURRENCE

aggregate

11.000.000

ilOO.OOO

$6.000

$1.000.000

$2.000.000

$2.000.000

PER
rjTATIfTF

OTH.
ER .

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT

E.L. aSEASE • EA EMPLOYEE

E.L tXSEASE • POLICY UMIT

$100.000

$100.000

tSOO.OOO

$1,000,000 D&O&EPLI
For All Claims

$1.000 Retention

OeSCRlPnOH of OFERAHOMS / locations I vehicles (ACORO 101. AddWaoal Rtmaifca SehatfMa, may ba attaehad F moia apaea la raRMiNd)
Proof of Insurance

CERTinCATE HOLDER i

Dennis Riendeau

Weldema, Lavln, Grott & Riendeau PC
Two International Drive, Suite

226

Portsmouth, NH 03801

SHOULD AMY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CAHCELLED BEFORE
THE EXPIRATION DATE THEREOF. NOTICE WILL BE DEUVEREO IN
ACCORDANCE WITH THE POUCY PROVISIONS.

AUTHORIZEO REPRESEHTATTVE

tAAA A/«rkDn nriDDnRATinM. All riahts reserved.

ACORO 25 (2014/01) 1
#S768834/M788833

of 1 The ACORD name and logo are registertd mafke of ACORO LLM



^epartmEnt of ̂ tate

CERTIFICATE OF GOOD STANDING

I, William M. Gardner, Secretary of State of the State of New Hampshire, do hereby

certify that CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER OF ROCKINGHAM COUNTY. INC.

(formerly SEACOAST CHILD ADVOCACY CENTER, INC.) is a New Hampshire

nonprofit corporation formed July 12, 1999. 1 further certify that it is in good standing as

far as this office is concerned, having filed the relum(s) and paid the fees required by law.

In TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I hereto

set my hand and cause to be affixed
the Seal of the State of New Hampshire,
this 9^ day of August, A.D. 2004

William M. Gardner

Secretary of Stale
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